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The Stewards have pleasure in submitting their annual report and the audited consolidated financial
statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”)
for the year ended 30 June 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the year, the Group was primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in
Hong Kong, in operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and
in managing Members’ social and recreational facilities.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 12.
All figures in the annual report and the audited consolidated financial statements are expressed in
millions of Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated.

DONATIONS

During the year, the Group donated HK$4,400 million to The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust
(the “Trust”) and HK$93 million for other charitable purposes.

STEWARDS

The Board of Stewards during the year and up to the date of this annual report is listed in the “Board
of Stewards” section.

Dr Simon S O Ip and Mr Anthony W K Chow were elected Chairman and Deputy Chairman
respectively immediately after the 2017 Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with the Club’s Articles of Association, Mr Anthony W K Chow, Mr Michael T H Lee
and The Hon Sir C K Chow will retire by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. All
three Stewards retiring by rotation, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

Dr Christopher Cheng retired as a Steward on 15 June 2018 upon reaching the age of 70 and his
vacancy will be filled by election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Dr Simon S O Ip will retire as the Chairman at the conclusion of the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting as he will reach the age of 70 shortly thereafter and his vacancy will be filled by election.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year under
review. No transactions, arrangements or contract of significance in relation to the Club’s business
to which the Club or its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Steward had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review is contained on pages 2 to 6, and is part of the Report of the Stewards.

SUBSIDIARIES

The principal activities and Directors of the Club’s subsidiaries are shown on page 67.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for reappointment at the Club’s forthcoming annual general
meeting.

This report is prepared in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Stewards and is signed for
and on behalf of the Board.

Simon S O Ip
Chairman
26 July 2018



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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TO THE MEMBERS OF THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB

(incorporated in Hong Kong with liability limited by guarantee)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club (the “Club”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 12 to 67, which comprise:

o the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018;

. the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

. the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 30 June 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued
by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The Board of Stewards of the Club is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all of the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements of The Hong Kong Jockey Club, the financial statements of The Hong Kong
Jockey Club Charities Trust and our auditor’s reports thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITY OF THE BOARD OF STEWARDS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Stewards of the Club is responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Board of Stewards
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of Stewards is responsible for
assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Stewards either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of
this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT.)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Stewards.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Stewards’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 26 July 2018
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEWRER

BZ6HA30RHILFE for the year ended 30 June
BEBET in HK$ million Hi=E Note 2018 2017
EEZHHE Number of race meetings 1 87 87
R EEEIREEER Amounts wagered by local customers 218,126 210,400
EEXhEEBRIMNUTELE Amounts of non-local bets placed

by commingling partners 15,846 6,124
BOTHER Total amounts wagered 2.2 233,972 216,524
BERESFBA Betting and lottery revenue 2.3 35,583 33,908
BERRESELH Betting and lottery duty (22,025) (21,194)
RRTIM T A Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (77) 67)
#EES Lotteries Fund (1,217) (1,202)
MARMAE Net margin and commission 4 12,264 11,445
Hiba Other income 5 4,206 3,398

16,470 14,843

R Operating costs 6 (10,832) (10,095)
BEFEIESNIERE Present value of donations to the Trust 8 (4,413) (7,323)
HRBRETESRBEERNEE R/ (FE) Operating surplus/(deficit) after donations to the Trust 1,225 (2,575)
FRAE W E Interest income from deposits 109 111

RBERERRPREAESNER

Surplus from securities investments

and long-term investment portfolios 356 355
BERESRENREE Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 858 973
MsEA Finance costs 22 (5) (5)
1,318 1,434
it &E A TR Share of profits of joint ventures 14 2,097 2,917
HRBIIE AT B R Surplus before taxation 4,640 1,776
Fim Taxation 7 (535) (566)
MREERFEERRR Net surplus after taxation 4,105 1,210
BEBT in HK$ million 2018 2017
HBRBIBRFARTTIRERRK Operating surplus after taxation and before investment
HEME KRR AL BER returns and gain on sale of properties 4,797 4,164
REBER Investment returns 3,407 4,329
HEME K Gain on sale of properties 314 40
HRBIBEBR R AR BB ETESRERNER Surplus after taxation and before donations to the Trust 8,518 8,533
BETFEIESHIERE Present value of donations to the Trust (4,413) (7,323)
MRBIE AR Net surplus after taxation 4,105 1,210

HBBREBEANRTRELRE HEMERFS A NEL
Bty RECEEREFETESHRENEE -
REKBEEERFNENRS  BLERENRHREA
ENEBR/FE FRESCRENER/BE - IKE
B BUR Fr{h Investment Trust B9 K/ E518 o

Operating surplus after taxation and before investment returns and gain on sale of properties is the
basis for determining the Group’s donations to the Trust.

Investment returns include interest income from deposits, surplus/deficit from securities investments
and long-term investment portfolios, surplus/deficit from Contingency Fund investments, finance
costs and share of profits/losses of the Investment Trust.

FI7TEE6T HNMEBAREMBREN -0 -

12

The notes on pages 17 to 67 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REZERER

BZ6H30BILEEE for the year ended 30 June
BHEET in HK$ million Hi5E Note 2018 2017
MREBIE N FERER Net surplus after taxation 4,105 1,210
Hih2EKE Other comprehensive income
TEEFIERARRRKRNWIER Items that will not be reclassified to income statement
BRAREINEENERTE Remeasurements of post-employment benefit
obligations 25 168 299
HETREHIBRARRKRNIER ltems that may be reclassified subsequently to
income statement
EMHRELS Currency translation differences 25 65 (32)
AEERRENEM2ERE Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 233 267
REEZENEETE Total comprehensive income for the year 4,338 1,477
F1I7TEZ67TENMEBARGEMBHRRN -2 - The notes on pages 17 to 67 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e TR R R

6 H30H at 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million Ff5F Note 2018 2017
FRBEE Non-current assets
W REREEM Property, plant and equipment 10 12,080 12,020
EERNVES TR T ERE Leasehold land and land use rights
under operating leases 1M 1,138 1,133
REYE Investment properties 12 - 1
B EE Intangible assets 13 1,444 -
BENTRE Investments in joint ventures 14 28,496 27,384
BREESRE Contingency Fund investments 15 9,721 8,112
REREAS Long-term investment portfolios 16 2,995 2,790
REFERIE Long-term prepayments 17 393 412
PTEEmIA Derivative financial instruments 20 101 -
BIEFRISBERE Deferred income tax assets 18 121 8
56,489 51,860
REEE Current assets
B EEEE Assets held for sale - 1
B 5 Rk HMERFRE Trade and other receivables 19 503 466
HitRBERE Other current assets 19 494 420
fTEemI A Derivative financial instruments 20 13 6
SEEATERR Short-term deposits 21 2,825 1,664
ReRkReZEEY Cash and cash equivalents 21 6,351 4,183
10,186 6,740
REAE Current liabilities
FEHAERK Short-term loans 22 (133) (142)
B 5 R HMERERR Trade and other payables 23,31.2 (10,611) (6,977)
FEURFRIE Receipts in advance (455) (371)
THAEHAE Current income tax liabilities (659) (492)
TEEmIA Derivative financial instruments 20 (3) (29)
(11,861) (8,011)
REBEFRE Net current liabilities (1,675) (1,271)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
EEFIEHAE Deferred income tax liabilities 18 (565) (494)
THEemIA Derivative financial instruments 20 - (18)
REBFEE Defined benefit scheme 24 (429) (577)
HAb R Other payables 31.2 (3,205) (3,223)
(4,199) (4,312)
50,615 46,277
i Reserves 25 18,428 16,100
ERES Contingency Fund 26 31,537 28,988
BRES Development Fund 27 650 1,189
B E Total equity 50,615 46,277
#E Simon SO Ip
HEHT Anthony W K Chow
Axe Stewards
FITEHZ7TENMEBARGREMBREN -2 - The notes on pages 17 to 67 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REREREER

HERES BRES

f#% Contingency Development R

A8Ex in HK$ million Reserves Fund Fund Total

201757 B 1 B# & Balance at 1 July 2017 16,100 28,988 1,189 46,277

MRBIE Y FEERER Net surplus after taxation 4,105 - - 4,105

R Transfers (2,010) 2,549 (539) -
AFEERBENHEMEZEKE Other comprehensive income for

the year, net of tax 233 - - 233

AEELHNRHEAHE Total comprehensive income for the year 2,328 2,549 (539) 4,338

20184 6 B 30 H&EfR Balance at 30 June 2018 18,428 31,537 650 50,615

20167 B 1 B&: &4 Balance at 1 July 2016 22,864 20,747 1,189 44,800

MRFI B FEERER Net surplus after taxation 1,210 - - 1,210

L Transfers (8,241) 8,241 - -
TEEBRBEHEMEEKE Other comprehensive income for

the year, net of tax 267 - - 267

rEELHEHKSEEE Total comprehensive income for the year (6,764) 8,241 - 1,477

2017 6 B 30 A& 6% Balance at 30 June 2017 16,100 28,988 1,189 46,277

FI7TEE67T HNMEBARAMBREN -0 -

The notes on pages 17 to 67 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

10 _\ é IE! @5)2@ % %
BZ6A30RALEE for the year ended 30 June
BEBT in HK$ million Ff5F Note 2018 2017
EEEH Operating activities
EETBMEENRS Cash generated from operations 28.1 6,417 3,227
2AFES Income tax paid (449) (493)
EETEMEENFRS Net cash generated from operating activities 5,968 2,734
RETE Investing activities
ZH A B 318 A L LR EIER (3 ) /R A (Increase)/decrease in short-term deposits with
maturities more than 3 months (1,161) 649
BEYE - REREMN Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,366) (3,075)
BERLEE Purchase of intangible assets (733) -
REEAANEE L AR Payment for leasehold land under finance lease (148) (669)
HEWE Sale of properties 314 -
HEME - REREM Sale of property, plant and equipment 1 61
2 WERR S Interest received 111 133
EUEURE Dividends received - 85
HEeEARMEEE Injection into joint ventures (1,982) (4,425)
EFS—NGI Redemption from joint ventures 2,976 3,916
BERATEEEBERIIRNTIEEE Purchase of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) (3,469) (5,665)
HER AT EBEBEBRIIRNTKEE Sale of financial assets at FVTPL 1,808 6,704
HETESBMT A () /WUSEEE Net (payment for)/receipt from derivative financial
instruments (13) 3
RBREASRERESRENTIORD/(EmM) Decrease/(increase) in deposits held in long-term
investment portfolios and Contingency
Fund investments 933 (1,550)
REZBANFRS Net cash used in investing activities (3,729) (3,833)
A& R E Financing activities 28.2
EXAFE Interest paid (5) (5)
BEEE Repayment of borrowings (11) (19)
BB FEIE Proceeds from borrowings - 50
A RS E XS FERE R Net interest expenses paid on interest rate swaps 27) (32)
RMETHAANTERS Net cash used in financing activities (43) 6)
BeRIRSESEYFEM/ (HL) Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,196 (1,105)
FHURERBELEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 4,183 5,303
Higgia Exchange losses (28) (15)
FRESRRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6,351 4,183
ReRReEENEEIN Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
pSEIEEE Short-term deposits 21 5,408 3,421
RITEM - BERHEMREBES Bank balances, cash and other liquid funds 21 943 762
6,351 4,183

BI7TEE6THNMEBARSYBEREN -0
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The notes on pages 17 to 67 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Group is primarily engaged in the conduct and control of horse racing in Hong Kong and in
operating authorised wagering activities on horse racing, football and lotteries, and in managing
Members’ social and recreational facilities. The Club is incorporated in Hong Kong with liability
limited by guarantee. The address of its registered office is One Sports Road, Happy Valley, Hong
Kong. Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out on page 67.

The last four race meetings of the 2016/17 racing season were held on 1 July 2017, 9 July 2017,
12 July 2017 and 16 July 2017 (“July 2017 race meetings”) and the last five race meetings of the
2017/18 racing season were held on 1 July 2018, 4 July 2018, 8 July 2018, 11 July 2018 and 15
July 2018 (“July 2018 race meetings”). Accordingly, the financial results of July 2017 race meetings
have been included in the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
and the financial results of July 2018 race meetings will be included in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 30 June 2019. The 2016/17 and 2017/18 proforma consolidated
income statement for the full racing season is shown on page 68.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in millions of Hong Kong dollars (HK$ million),
unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 12 to 67 were approved by the Board of Stewards
on 26 July 2018.

2 PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are
carried at fair value.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements, are disclosed in note 3.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(a) Amendments to standards that are relevant to the Group’s operations and are effective for
the current accounting period

Amendments to HKAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

Amendments to HKAS 12 Income Taxes

Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2014-2016 Cycle

The adoption of the above amendments did not have any significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements and has not led to any changes in the Group’s accounting policies.

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that enable users of consolidated
financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

Amendments to HKAS 12 clarify the accounting of deferred tax assets related to debt instruments
measured at fair value.

Annual Improvements include changes from 2014-2016 cycle of the annual improvements project.
These affect one standard.

(b) New standards that have been early adopted by the Group

Early adoption of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 deals with revenue recognition and establishes principles for reporting information to
users of financial statements about the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash
flows arising from an entity’s contracts with customers.

The Group has early adopted HKFRS 15 with the date of initial application being 1 July 2017. This
did not have any significant impact on the consolidated financial statements and has not led to any
significant changes in the Group’s accounting policies.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.1 Basis of preparation (cont.)

(c) New standards, interpretations and amendments that are relevant to the Group’s
operations but are not yet effective and have not been early adopted

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been published and are
mandatory for the Group’s accounting periods commencing on or after 1 July 2018.

HKFRS 16 Leases
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor or Its
HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture
Amendments to HKAS 40 Transfer of Investment Property
Amendments to HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
HK (IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration
HK (IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
Annual Improvements Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014-2016

Cycle and 2015-2017 Cycle

The Group is still assessing what the impact of the new standards, interpretations and amendments
will be in the period of initial application. It is not yet in a position to state whether these new
standards, interpretations and amendments will have a significant impact on the Group’s results of
operations and financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RSHRaR et
2 FESFBUER(E) 2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
22 RIEER 2.2 Amounts wagered
HEEWBRITNIIBESAREZRRTIHAER  The consolidated income statement presents amounts wagered as the amounts wagered by local
EEXtaEBBIMUEEE - customers and amounts of non-local bets placed by commingling partners.
2018
BEEEY B
HBZ6A30ALEE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football ##5 “axE
BHEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
At EE R R AR Amounts wagered by local customers 106,929 103,084 8,113 218,126
EShEEHEIMNUTEEE Amounts of non-local bets placed
by commingling partners 15,846 - - 15,846
122,775 103,084 8,113 233,972
2017
ENEE BIREE
BZE6H30BILEE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football 2% g
EX-3: 7 in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
At EE R R AR Amounts wagered by local customers 109,694 92,692 8,014 210,400
EERhEeEEBIMUTARE Amounts of non-local bets placed
by commingling partners 6,124 - - 6,124
115,818 92,692 8,014 216,524
23 EEREERA 2.3 Betting and lottery revenue

EEE U HAMBEYREEIHEANTIRERE The Group reports net gains and losses arising from all local betting and lottery activities as revenue,
1B HEERA - LS EBZERUAERR 4 which is the amounts wagered by local customers net of betting dividends, rebates and lottery
FEREREMNMB AL A= - NES prizes. A reconciliation of the amounts wagered by local customers and betting and lottery revenue
ROIBEHBEYRESFBANE R F RIS - is shown in note 4.

20



2 EEETEHEE)

2.4 #HEKRHE

RAMBRREEREZ2018F6 A30ALFES
S HEENBENBARAREE QAN BERE -

(a) MEBALE

MBARREEBEEAEZFHENER (BEEBN
2  EEEREERER  MAREATEZEER
HEK  REZAEHAZEHNES  XHENEBH
HERBEMEIMZEZEER  ASEEEHZE
E-MEARREHEEREEEEHER2EES A
IR WAENEBREEFERFLLES AR -

EEALAZEMNRKS » &tf - URXZNAREZHEK
BREBYFULEE WELARANEHBRECREE
fEHE  DRRESEFMRANBRER -2 -

ERENPBRRERA  HBELAARESE QRTNIR
ERBAENRBENBSEEFRDE FERESK
REWHERE - SEMBARRSE DR AMREE -

EEENMBHRETRENKEER  BAEFSH
BHRRPRREQBDFEENREEE - AIAHKNE
DRMREETRERAA -

(b) EEZH

EECEE BN EREENE 1 ERANFEAER
B MEEBHBREENE 1Y CALERYRES
WIREEE  NRBEREENSOEFIREE M
FRALERERSE AT - EECTIHESE RN
ME YEEZZRERSLEAT AL ATRARE
AN o

REBBSE  EREQASANESIKEEE
‘R HEBREEEERWBRMEOENRBERE
EEWRRZEMELRE HEBRGENSEQT
iR SRABRBAESEARMEES (BREER
IBREBTEEELNABENFRE-BINEAR
Wiz AIEESTERIAFENEIE  RIESED
REEQRAREERREFELIR

EEEHESERARSGNARESRINASIELE > WL
EEERELRAMEREAR BRIEERBETRS
TAREENEERRRBE  BRRSREBIETTUY
e SENANSTHRCHELRBETT  UBRRES
BAARABBRER B -

2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.4 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements, made up to 30 June 2018,
of the Club and its direct and indirect subsidiaries and joint ventures.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has the rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains and losses on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Club’s statement of financial position, the investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures are
stated at cost less provision for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries and joint ventures are
accounted for by the Club on the basis of dividends received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets.

(b) Joint arrangements

The Group has applied HKFRS 11 to all joint arrangements. Under HKFRS 11 investments in joint
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint ventures depending on the contractual
rights and obligations of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint arrangements
and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint ventures are initially recognised at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition profits or losses and
movements in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term interests that,
in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint ventures are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Accounting policies of the
joint ventures have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.5 Contingency Fund

The Club’s Contingency Fund is held to provide a source of funds in the event that income from betting
operations should cease temporarily; to finance major capital projects, either for the Club or for the
Hong Kong community; to finance major renovations to improve the Club’s substantial investment
in property, plant and equipment; or for any other special purposes as deemed appropriate by the
Stewards. The Contingency Fund represents the market value of the Contingency Fund investments
and this is adjusted annually through the receipt of investment income, realised surplus or deficit,
revaluation of investments and, when necessary, the transfer of additional funds.

The Contingency Fund investments (including investments in the joint venture: HKJC Investment
Trust Fund (“Investment Trust”) are held for non-trading purposes. They are stated at fair value at
the end of the reporting period, except for funds awaiting investment, deposits and investments in
the Investment Trust. The surplus derived from Contingency Fund investments is reinvested and the
deficit absorbed in the Contingency Fund portfolio. The accounting policy for the financial assets of
the Contingency Fund investments is stated in note 2.9.

2.6 Development Fund

The Development Fund maintained under The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited, is held
to accumulate adequate funds to finance future membership facilities. The annual transfer from the
net surplus of the year is approved by the Stewards taking into consideration the operating surplus,
investment income earned by this Fund, and the amounts of entrance and qualification fees of
Full and Corporate Members, and Country Concession Scheme joining fees received during the
year. The financial assets of the Development Fund are mainly included in long-term investment
portfolios.

2.7 Long-term investment portfolios

The primary purpose of the long-term investment portfolios (including investments in the Investment
Trust) is to invest surplus funds in excess of normal operational requirements for capital appreciation
over the medium to long-term.

These portfolios are held for non-trading purposes and are stated at fair value at the end of the
reporting period, except for funds awaiting investment, deposits and investments in the Investment
Trust. The surplus derived from these investments is reinvested and the deficit absorbed within
these portfolios. The accounting policy for the financial assets of the long-term investment portfolios
is stated in note 2.9.

2.8 Debt securities portfolio

The primary purpose of debt securities is to invest surplus funds for cash management and yield
enhancement. They are stated at fair value at the end of the reporting period. The accounting policy
for the financial assets of debt securities portfolio is stated in note 2.9.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.9 Financial assets

(a) Classification

At initial recognition, the Group classifies its financial assets as (i) financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss or (ji) financial assets at amortised cost. The Contingency Fund investments,
long-term investment portfolios and debt securities portfolio contain these financial assets.

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

For the debt instruments, the objective of the Group’s business model is not to hold the assets to
collect the contractual cash flows, and not both hold the financial assets to collect the contractual
cash flows and to sell the financial assets. Assets in this category are classified as current assets
if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current assets. All
equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Alternative investments mainly include investments in hedge funds, private equity funds, private real
estate funds and multi-assets.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps, equity options, foreign
exchange forward contracts and future contracts to manage its financial risks and to facilitate the
implementation of its investment strategies. These derivatives are classified as current as they are
expected to be realised within 12 months after the reporting period.

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

For those financial assets that the Group holds to collect the contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding on specified dates, they are
classified as financial assets at amortised cost. Financial assets in this category are classified as
current assets if expected to be settled or with maturities within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classified as non-current assets.

The Group’s assets in this category include trade and other receivables, funds awaiting investment,
deposits, short-term deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents include
bank balances, cash in hand and other short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value
and with original maturities of three months or less. Deposits placed at banks for a fixed term of
more than three months are classified as “Short-term deposits”.

(b) Recognition, de-recognition and measurement

Purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade day — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the assets. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, with the transaction costs expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs.

Financial assets are de-recognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.9 Financial assets (cont.)

(b) Recognition, de-recognition and measurement (cont.)

Subsequent measurement depends on the classification of the financial assets as follows:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group measures these financial assets at fair value. Net gains or losses on financial assets that
are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, including dividend income and interest
income, are recognised in income statement within “Surplus/deficit from securities investments and
long-term investment portfolios” or “Surplus/deficit from Contingency Fund investments” in the
period in which they arise.

For those which do not have quoted market prices in an active market, their fair values will be
determined with reference to the values established by external fund managers using valuation
techniques.

(ii) Financial assets at amortised cost

Interest income from these financial assets is recognised in the financial surplus.
(c) Impairment of financial assets

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

No impairment is recognised for financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

(ii) Financial assets at amortised cost

For this category, impairment is assessed based on the expected credit loss (“ECL”) under HKFRS
9 on the reporting date.

For trade receivables, the Group considers that there is no significant financing component.
Impairment is assessed based on the lifetime ECL.

Other financial assets including funds awaiting investment, deposits, short-term deposits and cash
and cash equivalents are placed with reputable financial institutions. The Group considers these
counterparties have a low risk of default and a strong capacity to meet contractual cash flows, and
are of low credit risk. The impairment provision is determined based on the 12-month ECL.

The Group assesses whether the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition to determine its stage for impairment. The Group considers the credit risk of a
financial asset has been significantly increased since initial recognition if any contractual cash flows
from the financial asset have been past due for 30 days or more. When a financial asset is unlikely
to be recovered, it is considered as credit impaired.

An exposure will migrate through the ECL stages as credit risk changes. If, in a subsequent period,
asset quality improves and also reverses any previously assessed significant increase in credit risk
since origination, then the provision for doubtful debts reverts from lifetime ECL to 12-month ECL.

When there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, the default portion will be written off. Such
assets are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off reduce the
amount of the expense in the income statement.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.9 Financial assets (cont.)

(c) Impairment of financial assets (cont.)

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost (cont.)

The Group measures ECL by using historical loss of the respective financial assets and considers
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information that is available, including the following
indicators: (a) counterparty’s external credit rating and its expected change; (b) actual or expected
significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant change to the debtor’s ability to meet its obligations; and (c) significant changes
in the expected performance and behaviour of the debtors, including changes in the payment
pattern of debtors.

The Group considers the lifetime ECL for trade receivables and the 12-month ECL for the other
financial assets as minimal.

2.10 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the items. Property, plant and equipment and leasehold land under finance leases
are depreciated or amortised on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Leasehold land under finance lease over the lease term

Buildings 25 years

Plant and equipment ranging from 10% to 33% per annum

Projects in progress no depreciation is provided on projects in progress until
they are ready for use in the manner as intended by
management. On completion, the project costs are
transferred to the appropriate property, plant and

equipment.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.26).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is de-recognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the year in which they are incurred.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.11 Leasehold land and land use rights under operating lease

Leasehold land and land use rights under operating lease are stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Leasehold land and land use rights under
operating lease are amortised on a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual values
over their lease terms.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at the end
of each reporting period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount (note 2.26).

2.12 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not
occupied by the entities in the Group, are classified as investment properties. Investment properties
are measured initially at their cost, including related transaction costs, and subsequently carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. They are depreciated on
a straight-line basis to allocate their cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives at
the same rate as buildings.

The gain or loss on disposal of investment property is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

2.13 Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise computer software. Computer software is stated at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition and development of the item. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful life of three to ten years. No amortisation is provided on projects in
progress until they are ready for use in the manner as intended by management. On completion, the
project costs are transferred to computer software.

2.14 Leases

Leases of assets where substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of assets remain with
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases of assets where the lessee has substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the lower
of the fair value of the leased assets or the present value of the minimum lease payments. Each
lease payment is allocated between the capital and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate
on the capital balances outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges,
are included in non-current liabilities. The finance charges are charged to the consolidated income
statement over the lease term.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or
the lease term.

When assets are leased out under an operating lease, lease income is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

2.15 Assets held for sale

Non-current assets are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount is to be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than continuing use and a sale is considered
highly probable. They are stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.16 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using
weighted average cost less provision for diminution in value.

2.17 Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the countries where the Club’s subsidiaries and joint
ventures operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to
interpretation. It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Inside basis differences

Deferred income taxation is recognised in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. The principal temporary differences arise from employee benefits, depreciation
on property, plant and equipment and investment properties. Taxation rates enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period are used to determine deferred income taxation.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries
and joint ventures, except for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary differences arising from
investments in subsidiaries and joint arrangements only to the extent that it is probable the
temporary difference will reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit available against
which the temporary difference can be utilised.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.18 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the consolidated financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Club’s functional currency and the Group’s presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign currency transactions and from
translation at year end exchange rate of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised directly in the consolidated income statement. Assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the closing rate at the end of the reporting period.
The differences arising from translation are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all Group entities that have a functional currency different from
Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

- assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of each reporting period;
- income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and
- all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net investment in foreign
entities and other currency instruments designated as hedges of such investments, are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

2.19 Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred, and are
subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognised in the consolidated income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the year in which they are incurred, except to the
extent that they are capitalised when they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.
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2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.20 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

2.21 Receipts in advance

Cash that is prepaid by members on membership subscriptions, entrance and qualification fees,
horse imports and pre-sale amounts that are received before the relevant betting services have
been rendered are included under receipts in advance.

2.22 Provisions

The Group recognises provisions for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the Group has
a present legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of time
is recognised as interest expense.

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue from horse race betting represents amounts wagered by local customers net of betting
dividends and rebates and is recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from football betting represents amounts wagered net of betting dividends and is
recognised when the relevant betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from the lottery represents commission income and is recognised when the relevant
betting service has been rendered.

Revenue from membership subscription fees is recognised over the subscription period.

Revenue from membership entrance and qualification fees is recognised in the month of election of
members and when no significant uncertainty as to its collectibility exists.

Revenue from gate admission to race events and racing sponsorship income is recognised when
the event has been held.

Revenue from catering sales, other member services, stable and livery service charges and sale of
souvenir items is recognised when the relevant services have been rendered and relevant goods
have been sold.

Revenue from sale of horses is recognised when the title is transferred.

Revenue from risk management service fee is recognised when the relevant service has been
rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest method.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis.

Co-ordination fees and licence fees from inbound commingling are recognised on an accrual basis.

29



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PR ER AR M T

2 FESHBER(E)
2.24 BERH

(a) REEFHE

REBFGFHAAEERFERAER  URESWELR
HERE -

EHEEUBRRERARAEBFERIANEE MU
ERPARRERBMNTEAEEENRERTEE
ENAFEENE -RERMNFIMEEEEIEFAH
BUBHEMAEFENEEEFE - REBFTEIFRT
AEEANRE  URFBRASTRERENREERF
5o omARXASEHRETERRSIHBEEN
BAESHEEHRERETE

BREERRELARREXAMSIBNBEERERE
B FAZHEMEEREERET -

(b) REH=E

FEQRAEMAEMENEIMR  EREHRE
AFRGERBRANWEIRAET - LERRE
ERRAE 2 EREBHRATR T 8 REEEUE K3
Mo EEFEHHERE  BBEAKRERE -

(c) EALRBE#HFR

EEEMMERMNTEARIEERIE - HIEAY
ReEHNEFTRABETEMEEREEM  AEES
BRIEAERE EETZANFERENES FEER
BR - KECHESHEZERBREMBREEEM
EENFRELMETEERE

225 BEEAL

RELGEUBREME  EEEAEIEER[E

BEES -5 RUHE-THHBREERKARE
FEN BFRZTA FEEEES -FEHEE

B BtS—SNREREREAL - BREALTTSR

BANERE -

2.26 FHKEERE

EAREBHEARYBRECAFHNEESENER/R
MW BAZLBFETORENR  XEHRE
TERREBRESEMUESEEREBEE LR
Elf BN EREEETHERRE ERNABENE
E AARERETESEREEREEMAKSERE
REEEEZREE  BNEEHREE - BESE
ZEERAEERLETWEEBNZHER - TK
BEEDNNEEAFEERLERS  AEERRAE
B UWMETNRSERE - RITGRER EER
THEARERBE(REELEBENVN)NREBRETAE
S BRENEEARSEZHA TUERRT U
BERSEREDE -

30

2  PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT.)
2.24 Employee benefits

(a) Defined benefit scheme

The defined benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) provides pension benefits to employees upon retirement
with reference to their final salaries.

The liability recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position in respect of the Scheme
is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation (“DBQO”) is calculated annually by independent
actuary using the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using market yields of government
securities which have terms to maturity approximating terms of the related pension obligation.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions
are charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

(b) Defined contribution scheme

Employer’s contributions to the defined contribution scheme are recognised as staff costs in the
consolidated income statement for the year when they are due and are reduced by contributions
forfeited by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully for the contributions. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

(c) Bonus and annual leave

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses. A provision for bonus is recognised
where contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation. Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they accrue to employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

2.25 Related party

For the purposes of these consolidated financial statements, a party is considered to be related to
the Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the party or exercise significant
influence over the party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice versa, or where the
Group and the party are subject to common control. Related parties may be individuals or entities.

2.26 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are not ready to be used or have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation
and/or amortisation and are tested at least annually for impairment and are reviewed for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Assets that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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3 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to exercise significant
judgements in the selection and application of accounting principles, including making estimates
and assumptions. The following significant accounting policies are impacted by judgements and
uncertainties and for which different amounts may be reported under a different set of conditions or
using different assumptions.

3.1 Estimated useful life and depreciation/amortisation of property,
plant and equipment/intangible assets

The Group estimates the useful lives of the various categories of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets on the basis of a planned asset maintenance programme and actual usage
experience. Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the straight-line method at rates
sufficient to write off their cost to the residual value over their estimated useful lives (notes 2.10
and 2.13).

Actual useful lives may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic reviews could result in a change
in estimated useful lives and therefore depreciation and amortisation expense in future periods.

3.2 Pension costs

The Group employs an independent actuary to conduct annual actuarial valuation of the Group’s
retirement plans. The determination of the Group’s obligation and expense for the defined benefit
element of these plans is dependent on certain assumptions and factors including long-term salary
increase rate provided by the Club, which are disclosed in note 24(d). In determining the appropriate
discount rate, the Group considers the market yields of government securities which have terms
to maturity approximating the terms of the related pension obligation. Changes to the principal
actuarial assumptions can affect the present value of plan obligations and service costs in future
periods.

3.3 Income tax

Judgement is required in determining the income tax and deferred tax provision. Final tax outcome
may be different from the amounts that were initially recorded. The Group recognises liabilities
based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be payable. Where the final tax outcome of
these matters is different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact
the current and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such determination
is made.

3.4 Impairment of non-financial assets

Management judgement is required in the area of impairment of non-financial assets, particularly
in assessing whether: (1) an event has occurred that may affect asset values; (2) the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the net present value of future cash flows from the asset using
estimated cash flow projections; and (3) the cash flows are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions adopted by management to determine the level, if any, of impairment,
including the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could
significantly affect the Group’s reported financial position and results of operations.
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4 NET MARGIN AND COMMISSION

Net margin represents the amounts wagered by local customers on horse races and football net
of the related betting dividends, rebates, betting duty, and payment to racing jurisdictions outside
Hong Kong. Betting duty is calculated in accordance with the Betting Duty Ordinance and the
Betting Duty Regulations.

Commission represents the amounts wagered on the lottery net of related prizes, duty and payment
to the Lotteries Fund.

2018
BEEEY BIREE

BZ6H30BILLEE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football 5 #azg
BEET in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
Rt IR E4AEE Amounts wagered by local customers 106,929 103,084 8,113 218,126
BEES  BHIkESES Betting dividends, rebates

and lottery prizes (89,197) (88,965) (4,381) (182,543)
BERIESKRA Betting and lottery revenue 17,732 14,119 3,732 35,583
BERRESEEH Betting and lottery duty (12,937) (7,060) (2,028) (22,025)
IR T It B S M Payment to racing jurisdictions

outside Hong Kong (77) - - (77)
#ERS Lotteries Fund - - (1,217) (1,217)
AR R Net margin and commission 4,718 7,059 487 12,264

2017
ESEY ERIEE

BZE6H30BILEE for the year ended 30 June Horse Race Football 25 R
BEBT in HK$ million betting betting Lottery Total
At EE R R AEE Amounts wagered by local customers 109,694 92,692 8,014 210,400
BEEE BIRESED Betting dividends, rebates

and lottery prizes (91,948) (80,217) (4,327) (176,492)
BERRESFBA Betting and lottery revenue 17,746 12,475 3,687 33,908
BEBRESELH Betting and lottery duty (12,952) (6,238) (2,004) (21,194)
FRF I ESHAE Payment to racing jurisdictions

outside Hong Kong (67) - - (67)
BEES Lotteries Fund - - (1,202) (1,202)
AFRAE Net margin and commission 4,727 6,237 481 11,445

A BEESHEHUBEYRAZREER RTE
2017/18 EE R 2016/117TEENBECEZT RSN
75% o RIRBEBUBEBRANS0%TE > MAEE
BB A IR TBEN25% T E -
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Betting duty on local horse races is charged on a progressive sliding scale on the betting revenue,
reaching the maximum rate of 75% in 2017/18 and 2016/17. Betting duty on football betting is
charged at the rate of 50% on the betting revenue, while lottery duty on the Mark Six is charged at
25% on the amount wagered.



5 Hftls 5 OTHER INCOME
BEBT in HK$ million 2018 2017
BRI U E Charges for catering services 877 836
=f - Membership fees 864 835
EERESREKE Stable and livery service charges 649 603
EEUhEE BTN ERTIE Co-ordination fees and licence fees from commingling partners 685 361
ESHREWEG Racing related income 178 166
BB TAMEBMRE Sale of horses 160 131
AREEREE Risk management service fee 106 104
HELRMAEBRE Sale of souvenir items 34 35
SRR Royalty income 34 24
HAib g A Other revenue 305 263
3,892 3,358
HEM KR Gain on sale of properties 314 40
4,206 3,398
6 KEHX 6 OPERATING COSTS
HEBR in HK$ million 2018 2017
B TR (FIE9) Staff costs (note 9) 4,753 4,312
ME - BERBEMITE (KIEE10) Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (note 10) 1,663 1,689
BEERS Prize money 1,176 1,126
MR R A AR Supplies and utilities 701 667
EEmAA Cost of inventories sold 581 544
HEREER Repairs and maintenance 390 339
EihEEEENES Operating lease rentals on land and buildings 179 170
mEEEHE(MIEE13) Amortisation of intangible assets (note 13) 52 -
EEBNEE L & 1 b AR (s 11) Amortisation for leasehold land and land use rights
under operating leases (note 11) 28 27
FIAEETIREERWEEERE Capitalisation of amortisation to projects in progress (28) (27)
2B & Auditor’s remuneration 8 7
REVENE Depreciation of investment properties (note 12) 1 -
EEHe Stewards’ remuneration - -
Hha&& < Other operating costs 1,328 1,241
10,832 10,095
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7 WE 7  TAXATION

BEBT in HK$ million 2018 2017

AERFTSH Current income tax

- 58 - Hong Kong 576 489

- BB - outside Hong Kong 43 31

- BEFERE - adjustments in respect of prior years 3) )

IEIEFRSHE (FIEE 18) Deferred income taxation (note 18)

- BB - Hong Kong 48 53

- HAEUIN - outside Hong Kong (129) (5)
535 566

EBAFNEBHIRERNEERMTERB ENIZ16.5%
(20175 : 16.5%)BIRFTE o BB UIMNERBERIFT
ELENFEH  CREBHEERNRRELBE -

EEBRBABBRIEENERTIE  HREEBANE
BB ENBIRERMT ¢

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profit for the year. Income tax on profits assessable outside Hong Kong has been provided at the

rates prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The taxation on the Group’s surplus before taxation differed from the theoretical amount that would

arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2018 2017
HBRFIIE AT I B 8 Surplus before taxation 4,640 1,776
BFLE16.5% (2017 F  16.5%)5TE Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) 765 293
HiERTEFEBHENTE Effect of different income tax rates in other countries (10) (5)
BARBNENRETE Tax effect of non-taxable income (616) (724)
A% R H R 8 Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 451 968
BAFERE Adjustments in respect of prior years 3) @)
Hth Others (52) 36
HEZ Taxation charge 535 566
8 B 8 DONATIONS

BETEIESHRE  EEEELGGEIESNE
o HERERE -

Donations to the Trust represent donations of the Group to the Trust for charitable purposes.

EEi in HK$ million 2018 2017
BETFEEESHRERE Present value of donations to the Trust 4,413 7,323
HIRENTE Present value impact (13) 77
BIBFEEESNRE Donations to the Trust 4,400 7,400
9 BINX 9  STAFF COSTS
BEET in HK$ million 2018 2017
e R EARR AR Salaries and other costs 4,444 4,006
REMEE Defined contribution plan
BRI Pension costs 71 63
BREEFT AR Contributions to MPF scheme 109 103
RERAGTE — BIRESRA(KIFE24) The Scheme — pension costs (note 24) 129 140
4,753 4,312
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10 #3% ~ sRfERBEM

10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

RIERLY
HELH
Leasehold HRER EETH
land under BM  IRmEe*
finance #F Plantand Projects in B

BEBT in HK$ million leases  Buildings equipment  progress* Total
2017 7R 1BRRAE Cost at 1 July 2017 2,164 5,523 16,614 3,824 28,125
" Additions 148 9 769 1,505 2,431
R Transfers - - 188 (951) (763)
HERTHE Disposals and write-offs 2) 3) (392) - (397)
BE¥HRER Currency translation differences - - 15 57 72
20184 6 B 30 HAE Cost at 30 June 2018 2,310 5,529 17,194 4,435 29,468
201771 HEBFERME Accumulated depreciation and

impairment at 1 July 2017 (1,041)  (3,321)  (11,742) (1)  (16,105)
REEFE Depreciation for the year (26) (148) (1,489) - (1,663)
BERITHE Disposals and write-offs 2 3 387 - 392
EWHRELSE Currency translation differences - - (12) - (12)
20184 6 A 30 H 2BINTERAE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment at 30 June 2018 (1,065) (3,466) (12,856) (1) (17,388)
20184 6 A 30 HEREEE Net book value at 30 June 2018 1,245 2,063 4,338 4,434 12,080
2016 F 7 A1 B ANE Cost at 1 July 2016 1,524 5,433 15,444 2,395 24,796
hrd Additions 668 79 908 2,048 3,703
R Transfers (8) 49 560 (610) 9)
BERITHE Disposals and write-offs (20) (38) (291) ) (351)
B HEs Currency translation differences - - @ @) (14)
2017 %6 A 30 A AME Cost at 30 June 2017 2,164 5,523 16,614 3,824 28,125
201671 HEZBRINERBE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment at 1 July 2016 (1,036) (3,195)  (10,526) 1) (14,758)
rEERE Depreciation for the year (21) (163) (1,505) - (1,689)
R Transfers 7 - 1 - 8
EERTH Disposals and write-offs 9 37 283 - 329
BE¥HIRZERE Currency translation differences - - 5 - 5
201756 B30 H EBITERREE Accumulated depreciation and

impairment at 30 June 2017 (1,041) (3,321) (11,742) 1) (16,105)
2017 %6 A 30 HEREEE Net book value at 30 June 2017 1,123 2,202 4,872 3,823 12,020

F BT ORREN2018F 8 ARAE » IE
ETWIREEP—%$3486,0008BTHRIE &
BREFURRBRB[MIET -

* Upon the planned opening of Conghua Training Center in August 2018, projects in progress of

HK$3,460 million will be transferred to building and plant and equipment.
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11 EEENEEL R T ERE

11 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS UNDER OPERATING

LEASES

BEBT in HK$ million 2018 2017
7A1BEAE Cost at 1 July 1,320 1,339
EMHBRERS Currency translation differences 38 (19)
6 A 30 HAANME Cost at 30 June 1,358 1,320
7HR1BRE#HH Accumulated amortisation at 1 July (187) (162)
REEHEE Amortisation for the year (28) 27
EWMHRELRSE Currency translation differences (5) 2
6 A 30 B 2&E#H Accumulated amortisation at 30 June (220) (187)
6 A 30 HEREEE Net book value at 30 June 1,138 1,133
12 REYE 12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

B in HK$ million 2018 2017

71 BEAME Cost at 1 July 23 29
i Transfers - ©)
BE Disposals (1) -
6 A 30 HAAME Cost at 30 June 22 23
TRA1BEEIRE Accumulated depreciation at 1 July (22) (28)
rEERE Depreciation for the year (1) -
B Transfers - 6
BE Disposals 1 -
6 A 30 H REME Accumulated depreciation at 30 June (22) (22)
6 A 30 A BREFE Net book value at 30 June - 1

REWEDR2018%F6 A30 %2017 6 830H -
HBEYNEEREEEEMTERTERATETE
B - fIEREWEHINURESE - REBRBA - &
BYENDATEBELSSEI200EBT(2017F : 98
2,0008ET) °
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The investment properties were revalued at 30 June 2018 and 2017 by independent, professionally
qualified valuer Jones Lang LaSalle Limited. The investment properties are located in Hong Kong.
The fair value of the investment properties was HK$892 million (2017: HK$920 million) at the end of

the reporting period.



12 REYWEGE)
TRANBGEESRBS  UATFEEHENRE
m -

N EEFTERG
M6 A30AUTIHAXFENAFEE

12 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT.)

The following table analyses the investment properties measured at fair value, by valuation method.

Fair value hierarchy

Fair value measurements as at 30 June

2018 2017

ERAFTAEE BARAHE

BAZE BWAZH

Significant Significant

unobservable unobservable

inputs inputs

BEET in HK$ million @Al Level 3 #RFl Level 3
AEEEFE Fair value measurments

REMHE Investment properties

- F=E(&E) - Residential (Hong Kong) 58 96

- BEBB) - Commercial (Hong Kong) 834 824

892 920

REVENDFEE RBEBETELBYEECEST
MZXEHNEREE  UERLBGEFHER - It
S FEIMEME - N EREBZE S HBEENTE
Legms  YFREERBMENMEEHRRE
M EEEL A TR -

BRSHYEREANTIBERAAZE > BETR
NE ARRITARESERZRFTENTFEARTS
EENBEENEFERNE4RBRELBEE
B BRAAFEENERBINEARES -
FARANGERGLEEE -

MN2018FE R 2017F » ZEAQXFEENERF 2B
BBV EER -

The fair values of investment properties were assessed using the direct comparison method
whereby comparisons based on transactions on actual sales of comparable properties have been
made. Comparable properties with similar character, location, size, etc are analysed and carefully
weighted against all respective advantages and disadvantages of the properties in order to arrive at
the fair comparison of values.

For Level 3 properties, the most significant unobservable input is market unit rate, taking account of
location, size and pedestrian flow, etc.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of
the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the year.

During the years of 2018 and 2017, there were no transfers of investment properties among the
three levels of fair value hierarchy classifications.
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13 BEE

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

FHEITH

E LG IR2EE
Computer  Projects in #zE
BEET in HK$ million software progress Total
2017F7HA1BK20165%F7 A1 HEAE Cost at 1 July 2017 and 2016 - - -
7E Additions 204 529 733
R Transfers 371 392 763
20184 6 A 30 HHANE Cost at 30 June 2018 575 921 1,496
20175 7B 1B K2016F7 B 1 B RiE# Y Accumulated amortisation at 1 July 2017 and 2016 - - -
REE Amortisation for the year (52) - (52)
20184 6 B30 H 28 Accumulated amortisation at 30 June 2018 (52) - (52)
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14 BERTRE

A2018FE6 30 B A& QNAFBUT ¢

14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

Details of the joint ventures as of 30 June 2018 are as follows:

EERAREHERAK

BREE S /A LB R FEHEK Authorised and FEARR
Name of entity Place of business/country of incorporation  Principal activities paid up capital Measurement
TRFBEEEERMERAT PEARLME(HE]) REBBHE - FArEd AR L3
China Sports Lottery HKJC The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) k£ ENZHARS 2{8208B T Equity

Infotech (Beijing) Co., Ltd* provision of computer technology, Renminbi (“RMB”) 200.2

(“BJ CJV”) technical training and business  million

information consultancy

HKJC Investment Trust Fund BI2EE REREREBES iE A =

(Mnvestment Trust]) The Cayman Islands investment in equities and debt ~ n/a Equity

MA2018F 68308 K2017%F6 300 » £EEiFA1
FHERTEERMARATNESEREZE0% -
R2018FR2017F » EEMGLEERPEEELEER

MERAAHNEER40% °

AR6HA30H 5B - EEREBBEERE Investment
TrustEEFENSERE LT ¢

securities

As at 30 June 2018 and 2017, the ownership interest of the Group in BJ CJV was 90%. The Group

shared 40% of the results of BJ CJV in 2018 and 2017.

The effective percentages directly held by the Group, the Club and its related entities in the

Investment Trust as of 30 June were as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2018 2017
BEESE The Hong Kong Jockey Club 47.0% 48.1%
EREEESREETES The Hong Kong Jockey Club Charities Trust 50.3% 48.2%
ERESEETRINEFEE The Hong Kong Jockey Club Retirement Benefits Scheme 2.7% 3.7%

100.0% 100.0%
BEET in HK$ million 2018 2017
7TH1H At 1 July 27,384 21,136
AE Injection 1,982 15,842
LS Redemption (2,976)  (12,508)
Pt & F) Share of profits 2,097 2,917
EWHIRER Currency translation differences 9 @)
6 H30H At 30 June 28,496 27,384
EEFENE * Unofficial English name
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BB AR T

14 SEQRKRE(E)
AENTEE6AI0 B LLMBHRELRHEENT :

14

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)

A summary of financial information of the joint ventures as of 30 June is as follows:

2018
ERFEEEER
FATERA T
BJ CJV Investment Trust #4128 Total
SE8EE S8EE eSS
WER HER KB
B Elagsd BA
Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
WiEm &k Income statement
= Income 257 103 4,273 2,089 4,530 2,192
] Expenses (225) (90) - - (225) (90)
e Depreciation (18) @ - - (18) @
FISNIES Interest income 6 2 - - 6 2
BIEA Taxation credit 1 - - - 1 -
BRELZ B ER Surplus after taxation 21 8 4,273 2,089 4,294 2,097
2 HNHBEE Total comprehensive income 21 8 4,273 2,089 4,204 2,007
BEEEX Balance sheet
ERBEE Non-current assets
W REREEM Property, plant and equipment 33 22 - - 33 22
EERIBEE Deferred tax asset 13 9 - - 13 9
RATEEEBE Fair value through profit or loss
HYIBRMNBISEE
BE Equities
EEBLEM Listed in Hong Kong - - 2,381 1,177 2,381 1,177
ZEi=3 i) Listed overseas - - 30,209 14,941 30,209 14,941
BEES Debt securities
wEEHNLET Listed overseas - - 16,391 7,212 16,391 7,212
LM Unlisted - - 10,646 4,689 10,646 4,689
HERENES Funds awaiting investment - - 170 93 170 93
PTHEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 200 88 200 88
REVEE Current assets
5 REMERE Trade and other receivables 154 103 - - 154 103
HittRe&E Other current assets 5 4 - - 5 4
fTEEmIA Derivative financial instruments - - 162 72 162 72
EHRTERR Short-term deposits 249 166 - - 249 166
RERBSZEY Cash and cash equivalents 64 43 - - 64 43
REBEELE Total current assets 472 316 162 72 634 388
REaE Current liabilities
B REMER Trade and other payables
BR RN 78 BUFRIE and receipts in advance (80) (53) - - (80) (53)
PTHEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - - (75) (33) (75) (33)
RBIMEEERE Total current financial liabilities
(TEEES R HEAM (excluding trade and other
FEAT BRI AN ZES) payables and provisions) - - (75) (33) (75) (33)
FRBARE Non-current liabilities
PTEERmIA Derivative financial instruments - - (83) (37) (83) 37)
438 294 60,001 28,202 60,439 28,496
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments - - - 21,816 - 21,816
REBREAS Long-term investment portfolios - - - 6,386 - 6,386
- - - 28,202 - 28,202
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14 SEQRRE(E) 14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)

2017
It RFEEEER
B ERA R
BJ CJV Investment Trust Bond Trust #28 Total
£BEFE £BEFE £BEHE £BEFE
B HERR HERR B
Elasd Epaysd B Elaysd
Group’s Group’s Group’s Group’s
effective effective effective effective
BEBT in HK$ million 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest 100% interest
Wik Income statement
Uz Income 255 102 5,217 2,568 728 327 6,200 2,997
S Expenses (176) (70) - - - - (176) (70)
e Depreciation (18) @) - - - - (18) @)
F S Uk 2% Interest income 6 2 - - - - 6 2
HIEXH Taxation expense (12) (5) - - - - (12) (5)
BRE &R Surplus after taxation 55 22 5,217 2,568 728 327 6,000 2,917
2 ENHBEE Total comprehensive income 55 20 5,217 2,568 728 307 6,000 2917
BEEEX Balance sheet
ERBEE Non-current assets
W R REEM Property, plant and equipment 67 46 - - - - 67 46
EERIEEE Deferred tax asset 12 8 - - - - 12 8
RAVEEZEBRE Fair value through profit or loss
=R EE
BE Equities
EEBLETM Listed in Hong Kong - - 5,011 2,503 - - 5,011 2,503
=3 i) Listed overseas - - 28,363 14,167 - - 28,363 14,167
BEXES Debt securities
wEhtm Listed overseas - - 13,755 6,203 - - 13,755 6,203
LM Unlisted - - 9,225 4,201 - - 9,225 4,201
HERENES Funds awaiting investment - - 98 68 - - 98 68
TEEMIA Derivative financial instruments - - 66 30 - - 66 30
RBEE Current assets
B35 REMEBRE Trade and other receivables 142 97 - - - - 142 97
HibRBEE Other current assets 5 3 - - - - 5 3
fTEEmIA Derivative financial instruments - - 47 21 - - 47 21
FEEATF R Short-term deposits 259 177 - - - - 259 177
ReRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 28 19 - - - - 28 19
REBEELE Total current assets 434 296 47 21 - - 481 317
REaE Current liabilities
B REMER Trade and other payables
R E and receipts in advance (107) (73) - - - - (107) (73)
fTEEmIA Derivative financial instruments - - (132) (59) - - (132) (59)
REKEERE Total current financial liabilities
(TEEES R HEAM (excluding trade and other
FEAT BRI AN ZESE) payables and provisions) - - (132) (59) - - (132) (59)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
THEEmIA Derivative financial instruments - - (60) (27) - - (60) (7
406 277 56,373 27,107 - - 56,779 27,384
BRESRE Contingency Fund investments - - - 20,876 - - - 20,876
REBREAS Long-term investment portfolios - - - 6,231 - - - 6,231
- - - 27,107 - - - 27,107

* HlEZ2017F 6 A30H ILFE - Stellar Performer
Global Series([Bond Trust DIETHRE - EEZEF

Investment Trust °

* During the year ended 30 June 2017, the investments under Stellar Performer Global Series (“Bond
Trust”) were transferred to the Investment Trust.
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14 SEQRRE(E) 14 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT.)

A& DT Investment Trust FriXE#E% - :REME  The debt securities carried weighted average effective interest rates of 5.0% for the joint venture
FHEBRANZEE5.0% (201745 : 6.2%) ° Investment  under the Investment Trust (2017: 6.2%). Their weighted average maturities were 6 years under the

Trust RS ER B SN MNEPHHRAB6 5 (20178 . Investment Trust (2017: 5 years).

5%) o
2018 2017
BTREUTIERTE : Underlying investments were denominated
in the following currencies:
E United States Dollars(“USD”) 83% 81%
e Pound Sterling (“GBP”) 5% 5%
BT Hong Kong Dollars(“HKD”) 3% 3%
BzE Euro (“EUR”) 2% 2%
=] Japanese Yen (“JPY”) 2% 1%
5EH Korean Won (“KWR”) 1% -
Hit 5% Other currencies 4% 8%
100% 100%
SENEGEATMBEAENITEERMIA Group’s derivative financial instruments in joint venture
Investment Trust
BRESRE REREALS Rz
Contingency Fund Long-term investment Total
investments portfolios
EE af& EE aB EE a&
BEBT Assets  Liabilities Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
RHMPESH Foreign exchange forward
contracts 56 (15) 25 (7) 81 (22)
HE Futures 5 (5) 2 2 7 (7)
HARE Options 1 (1) - (1) 2
= 5 Swaps 48 27 23 (12) 71 (39)
20184 6 8 30 A At 30 June 2018 110 48) 50 (22) 160 (70)
DATIT : Analysed as:
TRENER Current 49 (23) 23 (10) 72 (33)
FERBE D Non-Current 61 (25) 27 (12) 88 (37
110 (48) 50 (22) 160 (70)
REINESHN Foreign exchange forward
contracts 10 (34) 5 17) 15 (51)
e Futures 4 (5) 2 3) 6 )
S HR Swaps 20 (18) 10 ©) 30 (27)
201746 A30H At 30 June 2017 34 (57) 17 29) 51 86)
DT : Analysed as:
TRENER Current 14 (39) 7 (20) 21 (59)
R Non-Current 20 (18) 10 ©) 30 (27)
34 (57) 17 29) 51 86)

R20175F  EEKRBLRPEEBEERS
MRS Wz 2(E8,300 8B T
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BRMARATE

In 2017, the Group recorded dividend income of HK$283 million from BJ CJV.



15 ERESRE 15 CONTINGENCY FUND INVESTMENTS
BEBT in HK$ million 2018 2017
SERE Alternative investments
¥EW Unlisted 8,773 6,237
HERENES Funds awaiting investment 31 30
EZN Deposits 917 1,845
9,721 8,112

EEfMEERNMEFTIERANEE2.06% (2017
F1.14%) - EEFEGEREEHGEREESNRE
EBEEEEQAFEERESE  mMEBEMBEFERAMEFRS
HifR A 29 B (20174 : 558)

The deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 2.06 % for the Group (2017: 1.14%).
The carrying amounts of the deposits and funds awaiting investment approximated their fair values.

The weighted average maturities of deposits were 29 days for the Group (2017: 55 days)

BHEBT in HK$ million 2018 2017
BRESREUT GRS ! Contingency Fund investments were denominated
in the following currencies:
ES usD 98% 94%
BiE EUR 2% 2%
BT HKD - 4%
100% 100%
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16 REIREMES

16 LONG-TERM INVESTMENT PORTFOLIOS

BEEBT in HK$ million 2018 2017

SERE Alternative investments
¥EW Unlisted 2,111 1,900
HERENES Funds awaiting investment - 7
LEE N Deposits 884 883
2,995 2,790

EETEFFERMMEFLIIERFIEA2.36% (2017 F :
1.21%) s FRERHGREESHNEAEEEE QAT
EBEREE  MEEMSEFEFRNMETHEBRA99AH
(20175 : 62H) °

The deposits carried weighted average effective interest rates of 2.36% for the Group (2017: 1.21%).
The carrying amounts of the deposits and funds awaiting investment approximated their fair values.
The weighted average maturities of the deposits were 99 days for the Group (2017: 62 days).

BHEBT in HK$ million 2018 2017
REREMASUTIERBINE: Long-term investment portfolios were denominated
in the following currencies:
ES usD 96% 94%
BT HKD 4% 6%
100% 100%

17 REIBENFE
ENANREEEOERLRESEREHERAR
MERNERAINES  HEREREBLBRY
S fEH A A E MU E SRR -
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17 LONG-TERM PREPAYMENTS

Long-term prepayments mainly included prepayments of rental for the land and property of Beijing
Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited which are amortised on a straight-line basis over their

estimated useful lives.



18 EZLFBHEE/(AFE) 18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

FRAVENEEE —HAHEEXIKEERAELFRE  The movement in deferred income tax assets/(liabilities) during the year without taking into

MEE/(BBR)SBNOT : consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, was as follows:
EBERIK
BRI
Employee BE
ELERIEEE Deferred tax assets retirement Pre-operating Ht B
BEET in HK$ million benefit cost expenses Others Total
2017 7H1H At 1 July 2017 117 - 13 130
mA/(F8) hEx Credited/(charged) to 9 124 (6) 127
income statement
NEHEMEZEKSE Charged to other comprehensive
income (33) - (6) (39)
201846 A30H At 30 June 2018 93 124 1 218
2016F7H1H At 1 July 2016 165 - 174
RPN EE Credited to income statement 11 - 15
NEEM2ERE Charged to other comprehensive
income (59) - - (59)
20176 A30H At 30 June 2017 117 - 13 130
PRI
EREE
Accelerated
EEFIEE G Deferred tax liabilities depreciation Hith #zE
BEBT in HK$ million allowances Others Total
2017% 7810 At 1 July 2017 (641) 25 (616)
(8)/BAkLER (Charged)/credited to income statement (56) 10 (46)
2018468308 At 30 June 2018 (697) 35 (662)
201678 1H At 1 July 2016 (574) 21 (553)
(8)/LAkZER (Charged)/credited to income statement (67) 4 (63)
201746 A30 A At 30 June 2017 (641) 25 616)
2018 2017
ELEFS ELEFS
IEEFRE HasE IEIEFRS HasE
HEE Deferred HEE Deferred
Deferred income Deferred income
income tax s income tax s
BEBT in HK$ million tax assets liabilities Total tax assets liabilities Total
m/ (3K88) §9 Deferred income tax to be
EIERTSH recovered/(settled)
Zn12fE A% after more than 12 months 162 (528) (366) 71 (501) (430)
R12BB & within 12 months 56 (134) (79) 59 (115) (56)
218 (662)  (444) 130 ©16)  (486)
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19 BSZREAMRUGIRER MR 19 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER CURRENT
'E ASSETS

19.1 EZ R EAEKRFIA 19.1 Trade and other receivables
EENESREMEBERZRERET79% (2017 F : 79% of the trade and other receivables were denominated in HKD for the Group (2017: 80%), the
80%)UBTHE  HBEUHMEMIFE - E5KHE  rest of the balances were denominated in other currencies. The carrying amounts of trade and other
R RENREEEEEELAFEEBE - receivables approximated their fair values.
19.2 HtRBEE 19.2 Other current assets
BEET in HK$ million 2018 2017
#E Inventories 309 245
FESRIE Prepayments 185 175
494 420
20 TEEmTIH 20 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
BE =R
BEBT in HK$ million Assets Liabilities
REMEESN Foreign exchange forward contracts 13 2
=1 Swaps 101 1)
201856 A30H At 30 June 2018 114 (3)
DT : Analysed as:
REE D Current 13 (3)
ERBE S Non-Current 101 -
114 3)
RENESH Foreign exchange forward contracts 6 (5)
=58 Swaps - (42)
201746 A30H At 30 June 2017 6 47)
DT : Analysed as:
REE D Current 6 (29)
FEREILD Non-Current - (18)
6 47)
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21 EHERRRERAESEY

21.1 BHIER
EEFTSEBERNMEFLIIERFIEH2.26% (2017
F:2.06%) EEMSEHEFEARNERAERREQAF
BEEE > MEMEFHERA150 B (2017 F : 222
B)e

21 SHORT-TERM DEPOSITS AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
21.1 Short-term deposits

The weighted average effective interest rates on short-term deposits were 2.26% for the Group
(2017: 2.06%). The carrying amounts of short-term deposits approximated their fair values and their
weighted average maturities were 150 days for the Group (2017: 222 days).

2018 2017
EEHERUTIEEITE Short-term deposits were denominated
in the following currencies:

BT HKD 43% 49%
ES usD 42% 17%
AR RMB 13% 34%
BT AUD 1% -
Hibg Other currencies 1% -
100% 100%

212 BERBEEEEY

SEFAFIHNBEA=ZEAUTHERNMETHER
MEH2.28%(2017F 1 1.43%) - KEFERNIRE
BEEEEQAFEERS  MEAMNEFIHRS63H
(20175 :51H) °

21.2 Cash and cash equivalents

The weighted average effective interest rates on deposits with maturities of less than three months
were 2.28% for the Group (2017: 1.43%). The carrying amounts of deposits approximated their fair
values and their weighted average maturities were 63 days for the Group (2017: 51 days).

2018 2017
FHMBERIEAUTHERUATIERINE Deposits with maturities of less than 3 months were
denominated in the following currencies:
BT HKD 80% 68%
ARE RMB 20% 21%
EpH uSD - 11%
100% 100%

BZE2018F6H30BIt EENETHEBLAREF
EHERNBTEFOSERSRBSSEWBESRE
1,700E8 7t (20174 : 315800 8B T)  UARH
e WEHEIMNEEFHRE -

EENRERBESSENEE26185,300 8B THE
E2EL (20174 : 25{88,300 88 T)  LWEFIBEEG
BERENEEHE  FBHERME2S8 -

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents amounting to HK$517 million (2017:
HK$308 million) denominated in RMB which were held by certain subsidiaries with bank accounts
operating in the PRC where exchange controls apply.

Cash and cash equivalents included HK$2,653 million of customer funds for the Group (2017:
HK$2,583 million) that were matched by liabilities of an equal value as disclosed in note 23.
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22 RTHIER
BEET

22 SHORT-TERM LOANS

in HK$ million 2018 2017

BEIRAER

5,000 THMER (201745 : 5,00088 ) BAXHF
BERMENF0.82%EE1.91%(2017F : N F0.7% &
1.2%) 2 EHFE - M8,300E B TMERR (20174 :
9,2008 &) B EEFEFEN T 4.26%E24.35%
(20175 : N F3.83% EL4.26% ) ZBHIFIE ©

Unsecured loans 133 142

Loans of HK$50 million (2017: HK$50 million) were subject to floating interest rate between 0.82%
and 1.91% per annum (2017: between 0.70% and 1.20% per annum). Loans of HK$83 million (2017:
HK$92 million) were subject to fixed interest rate between 4.26% and 4.35% per annum (2017:
between 3.83% and 4.26% per annum).

2018 2017
HHERUTIIERRE Short-term loans were denominated
in the following currencies:
AR RMB 62% 65%
BT HKD 38% 35%
100% 100%

FANERANEXZHAE500E8t(20174F : 5008
BIT) ©

23 ESZRHEMENSIRIR

EOREMEMARREE  @EEITESELEEERS
MR S4EHBIT(2017F  8) » BEREBERE
HEPREANEAR  EBEBRRERUBRSES N
(FftzE31.2) s K (b)5EE26 {2 5,300 8B TR R
F1ZF (201745 : 2512 8,300&8 ) - BERFETF
DEGEERERESEEYRERRENIETER
B EBENWE21 - EZREMENERER
MEFHENREEEEEEAPEEMRE - EEMNE
SREMEMIRFKAMESFIES » H96% (2017 £ :
94%)LUBTTITE » HSUHEHMEBITE -
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The loan interest expense incurred for the year was HK$5 million (2017: HK$5 million).

23 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade and other payables included (a) the remaining balance of the annual donation to the Trust
amounting to HK$3,400 million (2017: nil), which will gradually be settled by means of transfer of
investments and cash payments within six months after the end of reporting period (note 31.2); and
(b) customer accounts deposits for the Group of HK$2,653 million (2017: HK$2,583 million). The
customer accounts deposits was offset by an equivalent amount of customer funds held which was
included in cash and cash equivalents as disclosed in note 21. The carrying amounts of the trade
and other payables and accruals approximated their fair values. 96% of the trade and other payables
and accruals were denominated in HKD for the Group (2017: 94%), the rest of the balances were
denominated in other currencies.



24 REBNGE

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME

BEBT in HK$ million 2018 2017
HihBEREEREVERIRACERNEBRRE Other liabilities represented pension liabilities of the Group’s
BRFBRRSEENT : Scheme recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position which were determined as follows:
STEEENATER Fair value of Scheme assets (2,530) (2,605)
AR ARERE Present value of obligation 2,959 3,182
REMBRRERAVERRESFEE Net pension liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position 429 577
RERAGEFIABEENREHEROT ¢ Reconciliation of the present value of the defined benefit
obligation was as follows:
7H1H At 1 July 3,182 3,378
HIRE S HREMIRITIRIE A Current service cost net of employee contributions 122 133
B R A Interest cost 36 26
BEHEE Remeasurement:
- REELCHRE B RNWEEEE - Actuarial losses due to liability experience 25 24
- AEB BRI RNEERE - Actuarial gains due to financial assumptions (71) (86)
BRE X HHIER Actual benefits paid (335) (293)
6 A 30 HAMNKERKESRE Present value of obligation at 30 June 2,959 3,182
FRFTEEEATEEZHNOT ¢ The movement in the fair value of Scheme assets of
the year was as follows:
7H1H At 1 July 2,605 2,507
FIEUWA Interest income 30 20
BEHEE Remeasurement:
- FEIEEMNERSHITEE — Return on Scheme assets greater than discount rate 155 296
EEMHR Employer contributions 76 76
EXEF Benefits paid (335) (293)
BEfEIEERLNTHRER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets (1) 1)
6 A30BMEtEIEE AT ER Fair value of Scheme assets at 30 June 2,530 2,605
BERR in HK$ million 2018 2017
ERRKRPOEINTIBENOT : The amounts recognised in the income statement were as follows:
B AR I B A Current service cost 122 133
FRERMEBENFREHAE Net interest cost on net defined benefit liabilities 6 6
BitBIEERNINTHRER Administrative expenses paid from Scheme assets 1 1
129 140
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24 REGNFE(E)

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

BHEET in HK$ million 2018 2017
EEARERBEANEFTEZENT ¢ Remeasurement effects recognised in the statement

of comprehensive income were as follows:
HeBELReE s BNBERSE Actuarial losses due to liability experience 25 24
R SRR B 5| B E Actuarial gains due to financial assumptions (71) (86)
HAEENEBERENR Actuarial gains on liabilities arising during period (46) (62)
STEIEENERSHNITRE Return on Scheme assets greater than discount rate (155) (296)
EEEARERERNETRTESE Remeasurement effects recognised in the

statement of comprehensive income (201) (358)
BEET in HK$ million 2018 2017
EWREFRERNRERABEA (M 9) Defined benefit cost recognised in income statement (note 9) 129 140
E2HWRREANENTTEZE Remeasurement effects recognised in the

statement of comprehensive income (201) (358)
RERFE Defined benefit income (72) (218)

(a) SREREF=tEIHYH R R AGRE = B ot

REBANFIURENELHE  RUAERNK - &
W BRAEBENREFHAERSE  AHEH
—ERNENE -  AEBRFETBEARFABNIE
B RERFAEARBE —HEGETLHFRY » WER
(B SR ERDD) R ETM - ECRFIMQIES
SE(HRR)BRP)MBAETHRERERRE -5
SRBEAERA M —(EE -

BERAEBAEAEETZOANERER  FEUDHA
REBANANBER(ME) » UREBERERFGE
BEANES  AEBREZNEHNR - At F8F
FTERIZE1957(2011) B4 BRFTEMEELRRE SR
(BT BBRERBEESS)RBE 145 MENREE
SER GTERARRERNE - RAEBHTEA
DESHBEERB (DM BRQITIEER  ZATE
BERAERERAEINGETA -
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(a) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks

The Scheme is a defined benefit scheme that provides lump sum benefits based on a multiple of
a member’s final salary and years of service upon the member’s retirement, death, disability or
leaving service. The Scheme has been closed to new employees. The Scheme was established
under a trust arrangement. It is registered under the Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance
(“ORS0O”), and is an exempted scheme under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes (Exemption)
Regulation. The Club is the sole employer participating in the Scheme.

Based on the relevant clauses of the Trust Deed of the Scheme, the Club may utilise the surplus
of the Scheme, if any, to reduce future employer contributions as recommended by the Scheme’s
actuary. As a result, the asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum
funding requirements of HK (IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme. The Scheme is
administered by HSBC Institutional Trust Services (Asia) Limited which acts as the trustee to the
Scheme.



24 REGNFE(E)

(a) SREEF=HEIRYH R K AGREE e 4 (A)
SEERERMNABMARZINEEZRBAOT :

() RERR

EREMBRY  AERFHABEENLFEELS
2/ #mSUEFREEANEE/ EEFTENRER
M BMBRRBEARE - EREDBRERLRE
BR IESHBERRES -

REBANFIEERENEEEZ2H AT IEHE
WZTREAS  BERR TEEFRRE Y
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(i) F=mEbs&

REBAFEMAREEIRBETSESOREAE
B UFREAE - AW SESARETR TR
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(i) FEmE

HRAERAFTIAWEFEF D - AURERF
SEFTAREREN2REERRNFEHE - BF T
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(c) REFEFBIEENER

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

(@) Description of Scheme characteristics and associated risks (cont.)

The Scheme typically exposes the Club to the following key risks:

(i) Investment risk

Strong investment returns tend to increase the fair value of Scheme assets and therefore improve
the Scheme’s financial position as measured by the net defined benefit liability/asset, whilst poor or
negative investment returns tend to weaken the position.

The Scheme assets are invested in a diversified portfolio of equities, fixed income securities and
cash, hedge funds, and multi-assets covering major geographical locations around the world. The
diversification among asset classes and geographical locations helps to reduce the concentration
of risk associated with the Scheme investments.

(i) Interest rate risk

The DBO is calculated using a discount rate based on market bond yields. A decrease in the bond
yields will increase the DBO.

(iii) Salary risk

The DBO is calculated with reference to the future salaries of members because the Scheme’s
benefits are salary-related. Salary increases that are higher than expected will increase the DBO.

(b) Determination of economic benefit available

As mentioned in note 24 (a), determination of economic benefit available is not required because the
asset ceiling under paragraph 64 of HKAS 19 (2011) and the minimum funding requirements of HK
(IFRIC) Interpretation 14 do not apply to the Scheme.

(c) Scheme asset information

BEBT in HK$ million 2018 2017
STEEEERE Scheme assets were comprised
as follows:
BE Equities 1,028 40% 1,353 52%
EEEFRES Fixed income securities and cash 668 26% 831 32%
LZRERE Multi-assets 428 17% 246 9%
HHhES Hedge funds 430 17% 194 7%
2,554 100% 2,624 100%

REBNHBRERMEAES R  EENESEE
ERMRE o

The long-term strategic asset allocations of the Scheme are set and reviewed by the Club on a
regular basis.
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24 SRERAETE(E)
(d) EABERR RGBT

24 DEFINED BENEFIT SCHEME (CONT.)

(d) Significant actuarial assumptions and sensitivity analysis

BERABERRENOT : The significant actuarial assumptions were as follows:

2018 2017
=R Discount rate 21% 1.2%
REFSERILER Long-term salary increase rate 4.5% 4.0%

M2018F6 A308 » BEINWELHA/TE0.25% » £
Hfra M REHBTENERT  REEFE
FIAEEENATFEE  B2oRRED/1EM1.5% K
1.6% (2017F : 2B1H1.6% K 1.7%) °

R2018F 6 H30R » #REFHE LH/TE0.25% » £
Httfie 2R EHEBFTENERT - RERMNE
FIAEEENATEE  B$22BEN/ HP1.7% %
1.6% (20175 : 2 BIB1.8% K 1.7%) °

(e) BEZZHR BRI

BARAAFTERAE(RRRITERABRKEBERG
B THRBITHRAS) KERM - REFIHRE - &K
ENHARNDRBREERHFEUEENEOLLAHE - FS
RS2 R (BERKEERG) WRE - B5TE
BEMETESMHEMESE - REB/AFH SR 2017
F7TR1BETRE-REZRME -

(f) A

SEFER 2019 FHMHFRAN R 7,300 88T (2018 F :
7,4008ET) °

(9) REFF =t BIFFREEERERIER

REBRGEIMAESEEZE2018F 6 A30HMM
PR E6E(20174F 1 65F) - THRIERED
RANBEBRRAERTE > BEFTEBIWET
BARE(BELTAREEERERFSEENE
) o LUE — S BER R ER A B AR R ST K B H
LD

At 30 June 2018, if the discount rate had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, the fair value of the DBO would have decreased/increased by 1.5% and 1.6% respectively
(2017: 1.6% and 1.7% respectively).

At 30 June 2018, if long-term salary had been 0.25% higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, the fair value of the DBO would have increased/decreased by 1.7% and 1.6% respectively
(2017: 1.8% and 1.7% respectively).

(e) Description of funding arrangements and policies

The costs of benefits are jointly funded by the Club and the members (existing Executives of the
Executive Sub-Scheme only). Members’ contributions are based on a fixed percentage of basic
salary as stipulated by the Rules of the Scheme. The Club’s contributions are determined with
reference to the funding valuation carried out by the Scheme’s actuary in accordance with the
ORSO requirements. The last funding valuation of the Scheme was carried out as at 1 July 2017.

() Expected contributions

The Group expects to contribute approximately HK$73 million for the year 2019 (2018: HK$74
million).

(9) Maturity profile of DBO

The weighted average duration of the DBO as at 30 June 2018 was 6 years (2017: 6 years). To
further illustrate the maturity profile of the DBO, the following table sets out the expected benefit
payments (including benefits attributable to estimated future employee service and salary) from the
Scheme based on the adopted actuarial assumptions.

AXNHEENFIR(EEET)

HEREETHNFEE Number of years after valuation date Expected benefit payments in HK$ million
15 1 341
2%F 2 347
3F 3 323
46 4 245
5% 5 326
6E10%F 6to 10 1,297
11 EFHLLE 11 and over 1,414
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25 f#&fE

25 RESERVES

ZiERHE N EE

Accumulated  Exchange #zE

BEET in HK$ million reserves reserve Total

2017F7H18H At 1 July 2017 16,169 (69) 16,100

MREBIB A REERER Net surplus after taxation 4,105 - 4,105

ERTHERES Transfer to Contingency Fund (2,549) - (2,549)

EREARRES Transfer from Development Fund 539 - 539

EMHIRELE Currency translation differences - 65 65
MRBENERERAEENEHTE Remeasurements of post-employment

benefits obligations, net of tax 168 - 168

2018% 6 A 30H At 30 June 2018 18,432 (4) 18,428

RESHFEE
Z2iEfEE Investment [E S fEE

Accumulated revaluation Exchange #EE

BEET in HK$ million reserves reserve reserve Total

20165F7H1H At 1 July 2016 22,331 570 87) 22,864

BRSBTS IR 2E R 5 O SR(E L A EE Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 9 570 (570) - -

20167 A1 BEDIE Restated reserves at 1 July 2016 22,901 - (37) 22,864

BB BB EER Net surplus after taxation 1,210 - - 1,210

ERTHEAES Transfer to Contingency Fund (8,241) - - (8,241)

BEWHEE Currency translation differences - - (32) (32)
BB ENEBRAEAEBNENTE Remeasurements of post-employment

benefits obligations, net of tax 299 - - 299

2017%6 B 30H At 30 June 2017 16,169 - (69) 16,100

REBEFRARETRE  EEEAKEERBESEERE
FEFFENED10% BAEERRLES  EEZ
DNEENEREINEMELNS0% BIL - FERHD
BERERERMER - TALUKHERTTER - B

R20185 6 H30H @ EEBBAEE56,2008 BT
(20174 : 5,90088T) °

The Group is required to allocate at least 10% of its net profit from PRC entities as reported in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the PRC to the statutory reserve fund
until the balance of such fund reaches 50% of its registered capital. The statutory reserve fund
can only be used upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset against accumulated losses, to
increase capital or to expand the business.

As at 30 June 2018, the statutory reserve fund amounted to HK$62 million (2017: HK$59 million).
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26 HERES 26 CONTINGENCY FUND
Heste
Fund
BHEBT in HK$ million balance
2017F7H1H At 1 July 2017 28,988
R ERE Transfer from Reserve 2,549
20186 A30H At 30 June 2018 31,537
REEGLHE
Heiten Investment
Fund revaluation wazE
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total
20165F781H At 1 July 2016 18,731 2,016 20,747
BB BB RELEREOREHNARE Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 9 2,016 (2,016) -
201657 A1 B ED&E Restated reserves at 1 July 2016 20,747 - 20,747
R e RE Transfer from Reserve 8,241 - 8,241
201796 A30H At 30 June 2017 28,988 - 28,988
27 BEES 27 DEVELOPMENT FUND
Heute
Fund
BEBT in HK$ million balance
2017%F 7818 At 1 July 2017 1,189
BT S Transfer to Reserve (539)
20186 A30H At 30 June 2018 650
REBGHFE
HEeiteh Investment
Fund revaluation FEEE
BEBT in HK$ million balance reserve Total
201657818 At 1 July 2016 1,185 4 1,189
BRNE BB EIREERE IR L NFARE Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 9 4 4) -
2017596 B30 HESIHE Restated reserves at 30 June 2017 1,189 - 1,189

BRRESHUKEE  FEJIARPREBEZA -
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The financial assets of the Development Fund are mainly included in long-term investment portfolios.



28 HERERERMEE

28.1 HIBRBUER W BEREEEEFR TE

28 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
28.1 Reconciliation of surplus before taxation to net cash generated from

EWFERESHER operations

BEBET in HK$ million 2018 2017
MBRFIE AT I BB Surplus before taxation 4,640 1,776
Frib & & A RaEF Share of profits of joint ventures (2,097) (2,917
BRAFEEEBERYIRNMEEE SRS Net gains on financial assets at FVTPL (1,214) (1,328)
FE W Interest income (109) (111)
FE X H Interest expense 5 5
HEMER R Gain on disposal of properties (314) -
HEVE - RIER BV RIBE/(KE) Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 4 41)
Y RIERBVINE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,663 1,689
REWERTE Depreciation of investment properties 1 -
B EE#E Amortisation of intangible assets 52 -
EET Asset write-offs - 2
EEESEE Movement in working capital

TEEM Increase in inventories (64) (24)

Z 5 Rk HMEWRFRIEIE N Increase in trade and other receivables (23) (10)

FEAFREGEM) /HD (Increase)/decrease in prepayments (10) 108

B 5 REMENERIIEM Increase in trade and other payables 3,745 823

FE U FRIRIE AN Increase in receipts in advance 84 6
REIFBNAFIERD/ (1850) Decrease/(increase) in long-term prepayments 19 (38)
RERAFTEIE M Increase in defined benefit scheme 53 64
Hib BRI GRS ) /1840 (Decrease)/increase in other payables (18) 3,223
EETIBMEENERS Cash generated from operations 6,417 3,227
28.2 MEEBELENEEHE 28.2 Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

PTESmIA
EHEM Derivative
Short-term financial “azE

BEET in HK$ million loans  instruments Total
201766 H30H As of 30 June 2017 142 41 183
ReRE Cash flows

BREEERE Outflow from financing activities (11) (27) (38)
FREEE Non-cash changes

INEE H IR B Foreign exchange movement 2 - 2

NEEEED Fair value changes - (125) (125)
201856 30 H As of 30 June 2018 133 (111) 22
201656 H30H As of 30 June 2016 111 168 279
RER2 Cash flows

BRETERA Inflow from financing activities 50 - 50

BREEERE Outflow from financing activities (19) (32) (51)
FEEE Non-cash changes

ANEEEEE Fair value changes - (95) (95)
R201756A30H As of 30 June 2017 142 41 183
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29 KiE

29.1 BEAKIE
REFHR > BT LAV ERELHEENERTES
29185,700 &8 T (20174 : 35/84,600887T) °

29.2 HERIE
M6HA30R  MEBTAWECHNWEXHENRAT  BEA
THRHWREESEBENT -

29 COMMITMENTS
29.1 Capital commitments

Capital expenditures contracted for but not provided for at the end of the reporting period amounted
to HK$2,957 million (2017: HK$3,546 million).

29.2 Lease commitments

As at 30 June, the total future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases were as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2018 2017

BT Buildings
R—FR Within one year 111 71
REZZFHFRA In the second to fifth year inclusive 131 56
RELFEHR After the fifth year 29 19
271 146

30 ETIRKEREE

EEAZBEERY T —EBAEEANFER—BERE
HAETE - METEIRE (BERKSTEEH ) =T
o THEBEYETIASE - It4 EEIFESE -1
ERETBRFMEAELSEE o LEFBRE RN
NEEFTEGEOY M THRMRBINWREEES

31 HAEBEALTZXS
MREREERAETABBEEEESEEA - UL
RESEZENARSHAARSERATANESEX
NREERANESBRE  FASERERES -
BEEREENARBHARSERADRES ALY
REERDTYERE -

BRTEESRAMBRERAMBIKEEN  KHHES
ENRAIRAEEALTEETHRBNT ¢

31.1 EEEH

FR - EERERTEEZERE  OEEESRERE
I 155,900 88T (20174  1/81,700887T) °

31.2 ENFFERAESHWIERA

RERPR  BLIFETESWIRTE68 E 8008
BIT(2017 £ : 34 £ 3,300 BB x)  EEAREREA
SAMNERIERT - BREEEE : () BETES
FHEEBRNWBERI4EBT(2017F 1 &) » 5
REBRERPAREANEARN  EBERRERUR
B H AT (KIEE23) s R(b) HEFELSBIBTAN
YItEEERN—%$34 & 100 BB T (2017 &£ : 34
22,300 BB T)MFIE  FAEEEENE LEY
oA - RENEETEESNESNHE  BEFERZR
ERESXAFANAIEEERNSRBER » LU
HEEESF - HENSFEIESHNERERZF » HP
321% 500 &8t (20174 : 3212 2,300E8 ) HR
BARKKI2EAAEE  ARIMEFRBES - ™
HHeRBASERBEE -
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30 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined benefit scheme and a defined contribution scheme. Members
of both schemes are full-time employees of the Group. Both schemes are registered under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance and administered by independent trustees. The
Group also participates in a master trust MPF scheme registered under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The MPF scheme is operated by two independent service providers.

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Club is related to the Trust, The Jockey Club Kau Sai Chau Public Golf Course Limited
(“KSCGC”) and The Jockey Club CPS Limited (“CPS”) as the Club’s Stewards are also the Trustees
of the Trust and the Directors of KSCGC and CPS.

The following transactions were carried out by the Group with the joint ventures and related parties,
except for those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements:

31.1 Management expenses

During the year, the Group recharged management expenses of HK$159 million (2017: HK$117
million) to the Trust for provision of administrative and support services.

31.2 Payable to the Trust

At the end of the reporting period, payable to the Trust amounted to HK$6,808 million (2017:
HK$3,433 million), which was interest-free and unsecured. The balance mainly included (a) the
remaining balance of the annual donations to the Trust amounting to HK$3,400 million (2017: nil),
which will gradually be settled by means of transfer of investments and cash payments within six
months after the end of the reporting period (note 23); and (b) HK$3,401 million (2017: HK$3,423
million) for the donation from the Trust to West Kowloon Cultural District Authority (“WKCDA?”) for
the construction of the Hong Kong Palace Museum, which will be settled based on payment by the
Trust to WKCDA on a back-to-back basis according to the mutual agreement with the Trust. Out of
the payable to the Trust, HK$3,205 million (2017: HK$3,223 million) was classified as non-current
liability as such amount was not repayable within the next 12 months, whereas the remaining
balance was classified as current liability.



31 BRAREALTZRE (&)

31.3 T EEEEHMH

ERBEECHhEEREE  YTHEEZESHYE
B -EERATRATEENERBRAHESEES
WER UTHEEHTEESEEEZ EBEZEg8AE
EEEENEF UZEZEREET - BTHEBHM
AEBRHEENES  SENZECEENRES
REREEZEY TEHZESNAEBRETHARER
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31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT.)
31.3 Key management compensation

The Hong Kong Jockey Club is governed by a Board of Stewards with assistance from a Board of
Management. The Stewards are responsible for the overall policy and direction of the Group and its
funds as a whole, and have the power to effect and carry out the objects of the Group. The Board
of Management is responsible for the operational management of the Group and is overseen by
the Board of Stewards. To align with the disclosures of other major institutions in Hong Kong, key
management, consisting of the Board of Stewards and the Board of Management which comprises
the Chief Executive Officer, and eight Executive Directors (2017: nine), are detailed in the “Board of
Management” section of the report.

Stewards act in an entirely honorary capacity and have received no emoluments in the year under
review. No Steward had, during or at the end of the year, any material interest in any transaction,
arrangement or contract that is significant in relation to the Group’s business.

The Board of Management’s remuneration consists of the following three components:

(a) Basic compensation

Basic compensation consists of base salary, housing and other allowances and benefits in kind.

(b) Performance-related compensation

This represents discretionary payments depending on individual performance and the performance
of the Group.

(c) Retirement benefits

Retirement benefits relate to the Group’s contribution to retirement funds or gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions. For purposes of meaningful comparison, gratuities in lieu of
retirement scheme contributions are disclosed on an accrual basis, notwithstanding the contractual
entitlement and date of payment.

The remuneration for the Board of Management during the year was as follows:

BHEET in HK$ million 2018 2017
BN Basic compensation 64 62
HERBHHNE Performance-related compensation 39 32
RINER Retirement benefits 16 16
119 110

FEARBIAT - The remuneration fell in the following bands:
AE Number of individuals 2018 2017

AR Bl Remuneration bands

4,000,001 B TAT Below HK$4,000,001 - 1
6,000,001 38 7t E 7,000,00058 7T HK$6,000,001 to HK$7,000,000 - 1
7,000,001 7& 7t £ 8,000,000 78 7T HK$7,000,001 to HK$8,000,000 1 2
8,000,001 87T £ 9,000,000 7T HK$8,000,001 to HK$9,000,000 2 1
9,000,001 7T E 10,000,000 % 7T HK$9,000,001 to HK$10,000,000 - 3
10,000,001 7& 5 & 11,000,00058 7T HK$10,000,001 to HK$11,000,000 3 1
11,000,001 /& T & 12,000,0007& 7T HK$11,000,001 to HK$12,000,000 2 -
12,000,001 & Jt £ 13,000,0005& 7T HK$12,000,001 to HK$13,000,000 - 1
13,000,001 & Jt & 14,000,0005& 7T HK$13,000,001 to HK$14,000,000 1 -
24,000,001 % 7t £ 25,000,000 7T HK$24,000,001 to HK$25,000,000 - 1
26,000,001 %8 7t £ 27,000,000 7T HK$26,000,001 to HK$27,000,000 1 -
10 1
BHSENIEEERENKE Key management who left the Club 1 1
9 10
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
32.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s investment activities, including investments in joint ventures, expose it to a variety of
financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, equity price risk and interest rate risk), liquidity
risk and credit risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group uses derivative financial instruments to manage and reduce certain risk
exposures.

The Group’s major financial assets include deposits, bonds, equities and other alternative
investments, which are managed by the Treasury Department of the Club and external professional
fund managers.

Risk management is carried out by the Treasury Department of the Club under investment policies
and risk management guidelines approved by the Club’s Finance and General Purposes Committee.
Investment constraints and guidelines form an integral part of risk control. Fund-specific restrictions
and guidelines are set according to the investment objectives of each fund to control risks of the
investments.

(@) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk of loss due to adverse movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments and transactions denominated in foreign currencies.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in HKD, USD or RMB. The HKD is
pegged to the USD, and thus foreign exchange exposure is considered as minimal. The majority of
RMB holdings are to meet future committed charitable donations and core operational requirements
in the PRC. The remaining currency exposure arises from globally diversified investments in equities
and bonds.

The following table indicates that at the end of the reporting period, if the following major currencies
had strengthened/weakened against the HKD by the stated percentages, with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s post-tax surplus would have increased/decreased as follows:

2018 2017
FABRBE FRBRBIE
BERK s BHARER
2/ G A) #in/Ca)
EEMRTY Increase/ EEMIR T Increase/
B L REE (decrease) B LLHIEE (decrease)
#55/855  on post-tax #3%/8#55  on post-tax
If currency surplus and If currency surplus and
strengthened/ equity for the strengthened/ equity for the
BEET in HK$ million weakened by year weakened by year
ARYE RMB 5% 45/(45) 5% 44/(44)
[G1€7:3 EUR 5% 18/(18) 5% 20/(20)
R GBP 5% 6/(6) 5% 10/(10)
H JPY 5% 6/(6) 5% 9/(9)
BT AUD 5% 1/(1) 5% -
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

32.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(a) Market risk (cont.)

(ii) Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk of loss arising from changes in equity prices. The Group is exposed
to equity price risk as the value of its equity investments will decline if equity prices fall. These
investments are classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated
statements of financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, if the prices of the respective equity instruments had been
5% higher/lower, with all other variables held constant, the Group’s equity would have increased/
decreased by HK$854 million (2017: HK$868 million) as a result of the changes in fair value of its
equity investment.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk of loss arising from changes in market interest rates. This can be
further classified into fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk. Fair value interest
rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset will fluctuate because of changes in market
interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that future cash flows of a financial asset will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group is exposed to both fair value and
cash flow interest rate risks as the Group has significant investments that are interest bearing.

At the end of the reporting period, since interest rates are essentially at close to zero, if there had
been a general increase of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other variables held constant,
the Group’s post-tax surplus and equity for the year would have been HK$121 million lower (2017:
HK$120 million).

The Group controls and monitors market risk through strategic asset allocation and the investment
benchmarks set for the funds. Currency risk is contained by monitoring the non-HKD/USD/
RMB exposure. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s Chinese mainland
operations is managed primarily through forward contracts and borrowings denominated in RMB.
Equity price risk is mitigated by adopting benchmarks that are diversified globally, by sectors and
by securities. Interest rate risk is controlled through benchmark duration guidelines and by investing
across a spectrum of fixed and floating rate instruments.

(b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk refers to the risk that available funds may not be sufficient to meet obligations as they
fall due. In addition, the Group may not be able to liquidate its financial assets at a price close to fair
value within a short period of time.

To ensure sufficient liquidity to meet liabilities and the ability to raise funds to meet exceptional
needs, the Group maintains sufficient cash and marketable securities and invests primarily in liquid
financial markets and instruments.

The Group also employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk by forecasting the
amount of cash required and monitoring the working capital of the Group to ensure that all liabilities
due and known funding requirements can be met.
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32 BIKREEERE(E) 32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
32.1 BIREBREZ(E) 32.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)

(b) FBE SR (E) (b) Liquidity risk (cont.)

EEHZE6A3 0B LEWIESTETREBRUSEEE®XE  The non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities of the Group as at
SEENSTEBEE  YURBEANIHBESNER 30 June are analysed into relevant maturity buckets based on their contractual maturity dates. The
HARABITMIEE D4 c THREKEWRZEASES LYK  amounts disclosed in the table below were the contractual undiscounted cash flows:

BAERE :

2018 2017
318 AR 3E A A 38R 318 A A
AT tE15F HUT FE1F
Upto >3 months 1FE PG Upto >3 months 1FE R
EX-3: in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year Over 1 year Total 3 months to 1 year Over 1 year Total
FOTERMBEE Non-derivative financial
liabilities
FEHER Short-term loans 133 - - 133 142 - - 142
B2 REMENIRK Trade and other payables 8,054 2,463 3,205 13,722 6,447 457 3,300 10,204
LUFRREELZERN Net-settled derivative financial
ST EE liabilities 6 9 33 48 6 3 69 78
8,193 2,472 3,238 13,903 6,595 460 3,369 10,424

R20185F6 A30H KEFMBFENRFEREHIE  As at 30 June 2018, the maximum gross notional value of outstanding foreign exchange forward
BB EREBELTES45/82,10088 (2017  contracts held by the Group was HK$4,521 million (2017: HK$4,177 million). The table below
F 1 4187,70088 ) - TREEEBE20185F 6  analyses the Group’s outstanding foreign exchange forward contracts as at 30 June 2018 and
HAB30HL1ER2017F6 A30 HIEMAFREHRIIES 2017 that would be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity buckets based on their remaining
RIEHDH  BESHKREEEE - WIRHER TS  contractual maturity dates. The amounts disclosed in the table were contractual undiscounted
NEBAB D EEAMRAR - TRATIKENRESS  cash flows, which were different from the carrying amounts (i.e. market values) in the consolidated
HNARMBEASRE  HEGSHBEMRRRAIIWIREE  statements of financial position.

EEHE)FE -

2018 2017
318 AR 3@ A 318 A 3fEA L
AT tE15 HUT FE1F
Upto >3 months 1L g Upto >3 months 1FE HBE
BEET in HK$ million 3 months to 1 year Over 1 year Total 3 months to 1year Over 1 year Total
RENEEH Foreign exchange forward
contracts
piges! Outflows (4,110) (411) - (4,521) (3,683) (493) (1) (@.177)
A Inflows 4,174 417 - 4,591 3,649 492 1 4,142
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)

32.1 Financial risk factors (cont.)
(c) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk since a borrower or a counterparty may not be able or willing
to perform its contractual obligations in full when financial assets at amortised costs (such as trade
and other receivables, deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and funds awaiting investment) were
due.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by rigorously selecting the counterparties and by
diversification. Deposits, cash and cash equivalents, and funds awaiting investment are only placed
with financial institutions with good credit standing.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group’s maximum exposure to the credit risk representing the carrying
amounts of financial assets at amortised cost recognised in the consolidated statements of financial
position less the amount of cash on hand was defined in note 2.9.

As at 30 June 2018, trade and other receivables that were past due but not impaired were
HK$14 million (2017: HK$6 million). The overall impact of impairment of these receivables on the
consolidated financial statements is considered by management. Management considered the
lifetime expected loss amount with respect to these receivables as minimal as at 30 June 2018 and
the Group made no write-offs or provision for these receivables during the year.

32.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern in order to

- provide a variety of world-class sporting entertainment to the community, while making
contributions in the form of duties, taxes and charitable donations, and

- support the Group’s stability and growth.

The Group monitors its capital which is same as the total equity shown in its consolidated statement
of financial position to ensure an appropriate level of return is made to the community in the form
of donations through the Trust.

32.3 Fair value estimation

HKFRS 13 requires disclosure for assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value by level of the
following fair value measurement hierarchy, which is categorised based on the lowest level of input
that is significant to that fair value measurement.

Level 1: fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
and liabilities.

Level 2: fair values measured using quoted prices in active markets for similar assets and liabilities,
or using valuation techniques in which all significant inputs are directly or indirectly based
on observable market data.

Level 3: fair values measured using valuation techniques (e.g. discounted cash flow analysis) in
which any significant input is not based on observable market data.

A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
32.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

The fair values of Level 2 financial assets and liabilities have been determined based on quotes from
market makers or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs. The most significant
input is market interest rates.

The financial assets classified as Level 3 and presented in the table consist mainly of alternative
investments that are not traded in an active market. These have been valued based on information
derived from individual fund reports, or audited reports received from respective fund managers and
considering other relevant factors if deemed necessary.

(@) The following tables present the Group’s financial assets and liabilities that were measured
at fair value as at 30 June. See note 12 for disclosures of fair value measurement of the
investment properties.

2018 2017
&1 &H2 H513 %8 501 12 513 HER
EX-3: in HK$ million Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EE/(aB) Assets/(liabilities)
ERESRE Contingency Fund investments
FHERE Alternative investments - - 8,773 8,773 - - 6,237 6,237
REREAS Long-term investment portfolios
SERE Alternative investments - - 2,111 2,111 - - 1,900 1,900
HibirE Other investments
TE2mIA Derivative financial instruments - 111 - 111 - @1 - 41)
- 111 10,884 10,995 - 41) 8,137 8,096

EENBRERNEHEENSHIABERELREE
A BRLFEEFERINEAREDL -

R2018F R 20175 » KEE=EAFEBEERR
I A o
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The Group’s policy is to recognise transfer into and out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

During the years of 2018 and 2017, there were no transfers between the three levels of fair value
hierarchy classifications for the Group.
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
32.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(b) The movements of the Group’s balance of the assets and liabilities measured at fair value

based on Level 3 were as follows:

BEBT in HK$ million 2018 2017
7H1H At 1 July 8,137 7,769
ERERERN R RAEE Total gains recognised in income statement 934 583
A Purchases 3,469 2,326
HE Sales (1,656) (2,541)
6 H30H At 30 June 10,884 8,137
FERNFFABRBERAFERHFRER Total gains for the year included in income statement and
REREASRHBINNSEETE presented in surplus from securities investments and long-term
investment portfolios 934 583
ERPREFENEERBBERFERTAREE Total gains for the year included in income statement for assets
WHIERFRERRAREASBHBNERETE and liabilities held at the end of the reporting period and
presented in surplus from securities investments and long-term
investment portfolios 1,333 547

(c) 2018%E6 H30 AR 201746 H30 H - &4k
B2 89 A FEERERNEERETTRBAS
T :

(c) The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value measurements within Level 2 as

at 30 June 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

kit fhERIS BERBAZH
Description Valuation technique Significant inputs
B%EE/aE
Financial assets/liabilities
BHINESH FRBEERE ABRER
Foreign exchange forward contracts Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates
=5 FRBERE AIERER - RIRRIEHER
Swaps Discounted cash flow Observable exchange rates, interest rates and

swap rates
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32 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT.)
32.3 Fair value estimation (cont.)

(d) Additional information about fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs
within Level 3 as at 30 June 2018 and 2017 were as follows:

ABBRBREFEIELAT
ki fR{ERKTS EREEBRRAZH @ (R 1T)
Description Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Range (weighted average)
BREE/AE
Financial assets/liabilities
BiEESRE EEFE" TEMA TEA
Real estate fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
AEREESRE EERE" TEA TER
Private equity fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
HHEERE EEFE" TEMA TEA
Hedge fund investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
ZREERE EEFE" TEA TER
Multi-assets investments Net asset value* n/a n/a
LEERRE EEFE" TEMA TEA
Private credit investments Net asset value* n/a n/a

CEERPIBRBINREAFEFTRMZETE
H OUERENEENIRESESCEMERNE
NESHENCELBRENERRERTERERHE
EREEMEE  SERAMZREEFERZ
EREVLDFEE-

(e) R2018% 6 530 HX 201746 A 30 AL &I
HBEEXEEURFEESIRK -
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*The investments classified as Level 3 and presented in the table above are not traded in an active
market. These have been valued based on information derived from individual fund reports, or
audited reports received from respective fund managers and considering other relevant factors if
deemed necessary. The Group has determined that the reported net asset values represent a fair
value of the captioned investments.

(e) At 30 June 2018 and 2017, no non-financial assets or liabilities were carried at fair value.



33 BEUBURRRRMEEED

33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE CLUB
BFEMBRRE Statement of financial position of the Club
BEBET in HK$ million Ff=E Note 2018 2017
FRBEE Non-current assets
W REREEM Property, plant and equipment 7,624 8,738
REYE Investment properties - 1
B EE Intangible assets 1,307 -
MBRARRE Investments in subsidiaries 1,017 1,117
EENTRE Investments in joint ventures 18,127 19,120
BRESKRE Contingency Fund investments 9,721 8,112
REREAS Long-term investment portfolios 2,360 2,042
REAFAEN IR Long-term prepayment 7 23
40,163 39,153
REEE Current assets
FissEERE Assets held for sale - 1
kB A BT ERE R Loans to subsidiaries 1,685 1,681
B 5 R HMEWRRIE Trade and other receivables 287 274
HibREEE Other current assets 353 303
FEW B HIB A RIMRIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 4,142 2,786
TESmIA Derivative financial instruments 13 5
EHEIER Short-term deposits 2,375 1,109
ReRESEEY Cash and cash equivalents 5,665 3,522
14,520 9,681
REEE Current liabilities
E 5 R HEMENIRR Trade and other payables (8,067) (4,690)
FEURFRIE Receipts in advance (128) (144)
R FHEBARMNRIE Amounts due to subsidiaries (6,718) (5,698)
REAEHRARE Current income tax liabilities (263) (93)
TEERTA Derivative financial instruments ()] (5)
(15,178) (10,630)
REBETFHE Net current liabilities (658) (949)
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
BEIEEHRAR Deferred income tax liabilities (505) (421)
RERFGTE Defined benefit scheme (429) (577)
FEURRIE Receipts in advance (775) (645)
H{th FEATBRFX Other payables (3,205) (3,223)
(4,914) (4,866)
34,591 33,338
& Reserves 33 (a) 10,004 9,608
ERRES Contingency Fund 33 (b) 24,587 23,730
EmEE Total equity 34,591 33,338
== Simon SO Ip
BEHR Anthony W K Chow
XK Stewards
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(a) BERERE

33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE CLUB (CONT.)

(a) Reserve movement of the Club

RiERE
Accumulated
BEET in HK$ million reserves
2017F7H1H At 1 July 2017 9,608
MREBIB AR Net surplus after taxation 1,085
ERTHERES Transfer to Contingency Fund (857)
BB ENERARANEBNENTE Remeasurements of post-employment
benefit obligation, net of tax 168
20186 B30 H At 30 June 2018 10,004
RESEMEE
BiERE Investment
Accumulated revaluation #zE
BEBT in HK$ million reserves reserve Total
20165F7R81H At 1 July 2016 17,264 14 17,278
RnE B IREERFE SFIEH AR Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 9 14 (14) -
2016 £ 7 A1 B EDf#E Restated reserves at 1 July 2016 17,278 - 17,278
MRBE I FEEEE Net deficit after taxation (1,996) - (1,996)
ERTERES Transfer to Contingency Fund (5,973) - (5,973)
BRRENESRAEAEBNENTE Remeasurements of post-employment benefit
obligation, net of tax 299 - 299
201796 A30H At 30 June 2017 9,608 - 9,608
(b) FEHBHELEE (b) Contingency Fund movement of the Club
ZEHE
Accumulated
BEBT in HK$ million reserves
2017 7H1H At 1 July 2017 23,730
ERARE Transfer from Reserve 857
2018%F 6 A30H At 30 June 2018 24,587
REEGLFHE
RIERE Investment
Accumulated revaluation Wz
BEET in HK$ million reserves reserve Total
201678 1H At 1 July 2016 16,918 839 17,757
NS BRI ISR S 2R 5 O SR(E AR Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 9 839 (839) -
2016 F7B1 BEIfE Restated reserves at 1 July 2016 17,757 - 17,757
EERE#E Transfer from Reserve 5,973 - 5,973
2017% 6 HA30H At 30 June 2017 23,730 - 23,730

66




M A A
A2018%F 6 A30H » BENTEWELATEHE :

SUBSIDIARIES

The following is a list of the Club’s principal subsidiaries as at 30 June 2018:
SERENERASL

Effective percentage

EBTRAEMRA/EMEA _ held by the Club
FEEK Issued and fully paid up share HE B3
Principal activities capital/registered capital Directly Indirectly
EEGEEEREEERLR REBEELER 2{88 T 100
HKJC Horse Race Betting Limited operates the horse race betting business HK$200,000,000
EESERRERERLA R R REEER 3BT 100
HKJC Football Betting Limited operates the football betting business HK$300,000,000
BEEEERFFROA RE R AFRSEK 1008#E T 100
HKJC Lotteries Limited operates the Mark Six lottery business HK$1,000,000
EEeS8EKERAF" RUSEEBTEREREAEEEEEEE 10078 7T 100
The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited 932 FH B R 44355 e HK$100
provides membership administration
services and manages Members’ social
and recreational facilities
ERESE(KE)BRAT’ EHREIRAERTENEEA 2087 100
The Hong Kong Jockey Club (Managers) Limited acts as administrator for the staff HK$20
retirement benefits scheme
HEREERATE SEEEHRENER 1,00088 T 100
HKJC Racing Club Limited manages the Racing Club’s operations HK$10,000,000
EEFEEBRRAR(FE)BRLR BEEERNEKRE 58T 100
HKJC Business Ventures (China) Limited holds the equity interests of the Group’s HK$500,000,000
business ventures in China
EREFE(HS)ERAT’ REBEBESSETENEENRBEAR - 100
The Hong Kong Jockey Club (Charities) Limited BELREEEEEMERARNKRE
acts as nominee for selected projects and
holds investments in Beijing Hong Kong
Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited, on
behalf of the Hong Kong Jockey Club
TREBEEEMERAT EEEEE BN HERERE 6,5008%7T 100
Beijing Hong Kong Jockey Club Clubhouse Limited* manages Members’ social and US$65,000,000
recreational facilities
ITEEREERIBEARAR TR B RE A R B BB 3 S A S RS 1,000B% T 100
Beijing HKJC Technology Development Limited* provides computer hardware and US$10,000,000
software technology development and
consulting services
BMNEBESESIRERAT TERE Bl R K& B U ARER b AR¥22152,0008 T 100
Guangzhou HKJC Race Horse Training Limited* constructs and operates horse training RMB2,220,000,000
facilities in Conghua
B BEERMERERAR TR S BRI A OB 90 B 38 I RE R AR A 3008 % 100
Shenzhen HKJC Technology Development Limited* provides computer hardware and software US$3,000,000

RERRBEZEAERAH AL  EENEETFREEST
EEETHBRAANES -S2BETEWEBATANE
HMESEE  ERALE ARXAE BERLE
HERELT  EZREL - TREL T BEBI%LE
BRAEE - ZEMELE - R2AREE  BEWLL -
EEREE - REF L - AEAELEE(H20185F381H
#8) ~ William Anthony Nader %4 (5201853 5128
#E) ~ Hui Shing Chi%t4£ (201854 B30 HitE) ~ R1&
BREE(HZ2018F381H) - BUBRE(HZE20185F

3ASH)RREMEE(EE20185F4H30H) ©
*HBEAHEXLR
FEEARXB

technology development and consulting
services

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Stewards are also directors in certain subsidiaries
of the Club. Other directors of the Club’s subsidiaries include: Mr Winfried Engelbrecht-Bresges,
Mr Chow Ding Man, Mr Christoph Ganswindt, Dr Gene W W Tsoi, Dr George Mok Yuen Chee,
Ms Gloria Y M Wong, Mr Herbert Tsoi Hak Kong, Mr Julian Chow Kai Wo, Mr Lee Hock Ee,
Mr Richard C K Cheung, Ms Philana Wai Yin Poon, Mr Andrew Charles Harding, Ms Scarlette
Kwai Fong Leung, Mr Henry Ho Kwok Kit (from 1 March 2018), Mr William Anthony Nader (from 12
March 2018), Mr Hui Shing Chi (from 30 April 2018), Mr Andrew Juen-yi Wu (until 1 March 2018),
Mr Anthony Brian Kelly (until 5 March 2018) and Mr Brian Ho Kit Yu (until 30 April 2018).

* Unofficial English name
# Unofficial Chinese name
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PROFORMA CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT FOR FULL RACING SEASON

BE2ESEHRERER

BEBT in HK$ million 2018* 2017
ESHHE Number of race meetings 88 88
At EE R AR Amounts wagered by local customers 218,902 211,657
EERhEEERIMUTEARE Amounts of non-local bets placed by commingling partners 16,577 6,505
BROTHAER Total amounts wagered 235,479 218,162
BEREZERA Betting and lottery revenue 35,741 34,114
BEHRESHEHR Betting and lottery duty (22,144) (21,347)
T It B S Payment to racing jurisdictions outside Hong Kong (77) (70)
#EEE Lotteries Fund (1,217) (1,202)
MRARAE Net margin and commission 12,303 11,495
Hitb 25 Other income 4,235 3,414
16,538 14,909
FEE %N Operating costs (10,852) (10,118)
BIETEIESNRE Donations to the Trust (4,413) (7,323)
HRBBEETESRBEBANCE R/ (F5E) Operating surplus/(deficit) after donations to the Trust 1,273 (2,532)
FRAE WS Interest income from deposits 109 111
BERERRBREASHNEE Surplus from securities investments and long-term
investment portfolios 356 355
ERESRENRER Surplus from Contingency Fund investments 858 973
MsEA Finance costs (5) (5)
1,318 1,434
Frib & A TEH Share of profits of joint ventures 2,097 2,917
HBRBIIEAT R R Surplus before taxation 4,688 1,819
HiE Taxation (540) (571)
MREIB AR Net surplus after taxation 4,148 1,248

ESHEEITEME -
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* Refer to note 1 on page 17.




SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS
FBEBME

EEESEREESRRIIRE

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP
RACING AND BETTING FACILITIES

BHEBET in HK$ million 2018* 2017 2016 2015 2014~
ESHEE Number of race meetings 88 88 83 83 83
TR EGIREEE Amount wagered by local

customers on horse races 107,705 110,951 102,665 105,281 101,818
it ESEELEEREN Horse race betting dividends and

rebates on local bets (89,815) (92,999) (86,026) (88,419) (85,656)
i BEFEZWRA Horse race betting revenue on local bets 17,890 17,952 16,639 16,862 16,162
it BB Horse race betting duty on local bets (13,056) (13,105) (12,134) (12,300) (11,783)
A IR TN BB RS Payment to racing jurisdictions

outside Hong Kong on local bets (77) (70) 47) (49) (36)
4 B B4R Horse race betting net margin on local bets 4,757 4,777 4,458 4,513 4,343
RBERIBFHEEE Amount wagered on football 103,084 92,692 86,795 78,249 62,197
EHETYS Football betting dividends (88,965) (80,217) (74,892) (67,061) (52,435)
EEREERA Football betting revenue 14,119 12,475 11,903 11,188 9,762
RIRIEEH Football betting duty (7,060) (6,238) (5,951) (5,594) (4,881
RIRER AR Football betting net margin 7,059 6,237 5,952 5,594 4,881
BEHIRTHEE Amount wagered on lottery 8,113 8,014 8,548 7,780 7,910
RERSE Lottery prizes (4,381) (4,327) (4,616) (4,201)  (4,271)
BEWA Lottery revenue 3,732 3,687 3,932 3,579 3,639
BHEBLB Lottery duty (2,028) (2,004) (2,137) (1,945) (1,977
BEHS Lotteries Fund (1,217)  (1,202) (1,282) (1,167) (1,187
R’5MAe Lottery commission 487 481 513 467 475
HAbFuas (R B EEER) Other net income

(excluding gain on sale of properties) 2,332 1,814 1,612 1,567 1,386
Pt g Total operating income 14,635 13,309 12,535 12,141 11,085
HERERAR Direct operating costs (7,439) (6,889) (6,571) (6,227) (5,882)
FEIEIRRR Miscellaneous donations (78) (44) (29) (60) (1)
HTE -~ #8  BEREBRSH Depreciation, amortisation, impairment

and expensed project costs (1,612) (1,580) (1,493) (1,202) (1,074)
FERCS IO Total operating costs (9,129) (8,513) (8,093) (7,489)  (7,047)
K& Operating surplus 5,506 4,796 4,442 4,652 4,038
B Taxation (633) (558) (538) (522) (704)
HRBIBR K ERRG Operating surplus after taxation 4,873 4,238 3,904 4,130 3,334
BASSEYMNAIRERS Unclaimed prizes transferred to

the Snowball Pool 60 67 108 75 77

LS RENRRERRAFTREBELES  HE
VWS  REOBINERTHEAEERBRRESAH

MELRER -

*REEFHBER

The above figures represent the operating surplus after taxation and before donations to the Trust,
gain on sale of properties, investment returns and transfer to Contingency Fund and Development

Fund.

* Financial data is for full seasons.
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SUMMARY OF OPERATIONS
EBHE

EEESEREESRRIIRE(E)

THE HONG KONG JOCKEY CLUB GROUP
RACING AND BETTING FACILITIES (CONT.)

BEBT in HK$ million 2018* 2017 2016 2015 2014~
BEBTRIFA5E Total amount wagered on horse races 124,282 117,456 106,142 107,925 101,970
B EARNEEENESEEEIIMNUEEE Less: amount of non-local bets placed by

commingling partners on horse races (16,577) (6,505) (3,477) (2,644) (152)
TiEEESEEREEME Amount wagered by

local customers on horse races 107,705 110,951 102,665 105,281 101,818
ESES8EBERAR THE JOCKEY CLUB MEMBERSHIP SERVICES LIMITED
=B MEMBERSHIP FACILITIES
BEBT in HK$ million 2018* 2017 2016 2015 2014~
Wz Income
SESE Membership subscriptions 302 292 282 263 253
EEABEREEERE Members’ entrance and qualification fees 124 111 114 104 106
BEREKEE Catering deficit (48) (52) 41 @7) 37
Hib I BEREK W E Other non-catering income 32 43 45 50 46

410 394 400 390 368
EEEHHEETHXH Direct membership administration costs (309) (331) (309) (305) (284)
MEREEXH Depreciation and expensed project costs (54) (64) (66) (76) (80)
@363) (395 (375  (381)  (364)

weE R/ (BE) Operating surplus/(deficit) 47 1) 25 9 4
B RER/ (E518) Financial surplus/(deficit) 140 127 (188) 40 52
MBI AT B/ (B518) Surplus/(deficit) before taxation 187 126 (163) 49 56

EECSEERERATCTUNREHEL  BY
EAEYUTABEERE N ERETERMAENRR
b o FTEESRM T AERFIRE1181,4008 8T (2017
FFWE9,000E8 ) RUSEFREHEANNA
FEEESH  YCEEEFANMBRE/ (BE) -

MR2018F 6 A30H  EE2REEKERLAZF
EEA21/87,90088 T (20174 : 19/£9,8008
B FEEEYE REREVANEFREETRE
5,500 8B T (20174 : 4189,20088T) » REK
BEHE61E3,50088 (20174 : 7/84,80088
L) ERBENRE7ET7,5008 8T (2017 F :
6154,5008E )  URREEEIE2,9008E T
(20175 : 4f87,1008% ) » BABEGBZ 451,700
EBT(2017F  RBAE3E4,000EBTRIFRE
E151,80088T) °

FREMBER -
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The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited entered into interest rate swap contracts with the
objective of hedging against the interest rate exposure of a loan drawn for funding of the Happy
Valley Clubhouse extension. Net gains of derivative financial instruments of HK$114 million were
incurred (2017: net gains HK$90 million), representing change in the fair value of these interest rate

swap contracts, and were included in the financial surplus/(deficit) during the year.

The net assets of The Jockey Club Membership Services Limited at 30 June 2018 were HK$2,179
million (2017: HK$1,998 million), mainly including property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets of HK$755 million (2017: HK$492 million), long-term investment portfolios of HK$635 million
(2017: HK$748 million), non-current prepayments of HK$775 million (2017: HK$645 million) and
current assets of HK$329 million (2017: HK$471 million), less current liabilities of HK$417 million

(2017: current liabilities of HK$340 million and non-current liabilities of HK$18 million).

* Financial data is for full seasons.



STATISTICAL SUMMARY

BATHFHE

= RACING
2018* 2017 2016 2015 2014~

EFHAHE Race meetings
ABIRE Day meetings 46 46 48 47 45
TERE Night meetings 42 42 35 36 38
HIRE Total number of meetings 88 88 83 83 83
BB FSH Races on turf 701 704 701 675 683
2RIFMEETSH Races on all-weather track 106 102 83 102 88
BI5E Total number of races 807 806 784 777 771
B Horses
B EBEHARE Total runners 9,794 10,003 9,840 9,755 9,627
B SEEETHAE Horses winning 1 race 311 314 302 300 269
BHERMEEEETHA Horses winning 2 races 131 144 134 129 132
BHEIEESFTHA Horses winning 3 races 51 38 47 44 54
BHE=SALEEFTHE Horses winning over 3 races 19 21 17 20 18
BHEEFTHE Horses with winnings 512 517 500 493 473
AEBHBEEERANBESTHAE Horses not winning - placed 431 399 419 408 428
REBHESTREAVESTHE Horses not winning — unplaced 357 359 387 380 371
REHBEFTHE Horses not raced 331 321 305 305 318
BUr4ag Total horse population 1,631 1,596 1,611 1,586 1,590
RIRBT Retirements 469 447 444 398 440
BEERS Prize money
REBLE(EEBT) Total prize money (HK$ million) 1,190 1,140 1,064 982 890
FHEEHEE(TERT) Average prize money per race (HK$’000) 1,474 1,415 1,357 1,264 1,154
BEEFHIES(FExT) Average prize money per horse (HK$’000) 729 714 660 619 560
FABRSREFEFTAKEIL Percentage of horses winning

prize money in the year 62% 62% 61% 62% 62%
FRERSREFULHEFTAZEASL Percentage of individual runners

winning prize money in the year 7% 77% 75% 76% 77%
FAREERESERARESREFTADL Percentage of horses recovering

basic costs or more in the year 38% 37% 37% 36% 35%
EFBTFHABZAE(T) Average attendance per meeting (' 000)
it Happy Valley 18.4 18.1 18.1 17.7 18.2
WH Sha Tin 28.8 29.6 29.3 29.3 28.4
EERIE(EEER) Total Racing Turnover (HK$ million)
ZiBRth Standard bets 107,528 101,517 91,204 92,730 88,301
S RIF Exotic bets 15,781 15,163 14,149 14,286 12,737
E R R Fixed odds bets 973 776 789 909 932
wzE Total 124,282 117,456 106,142 107,925 101,970

* Racing statistical data is for full seasons.
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STATISTICAL SUMMARY

BETHFHME
% FINANCIAL
A8Ex in HK$ million 2018* 2017 2016* 2015* 2014*
BB BB Payments of duty and taxation to

Hong Kong Government
EEELH Horse race betting duty 13,056 13,105 12,134 12,300 11,783
BIREEH Football betting duty 7,060 6,238 5,951 5,594 4,881
RSEEHR Lottery duty 2,028 2,004 2,137 1,945 1,977
FEH Profits tax 626 544 528 518 707

22,770 21,891 20,750 20,357 19,348

Donation in lieu of Entertainments tax*
to The Community Chest of Hong Kong 2 2 2 2 2

R BIBE B LSS

"IREFIE 1993 F 4 A1 B - EERAEBHESERN
REFRENTSASERETELAES BB THE
Z2003F3A31H » HEEHZ2021F3HA31H °

#Entertainments tax was abolished with effect from 1 April 1993. The Club agreed to donate sums
equivalent to entertainments tax on racecourse admission to The Community Chest of Hong Kong
for ten years up to 31 March 2003, subsequently extended to 31 March 2021.

28 MEMBERSHIP
M6H30H as at 30 June 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
EBEFEEEAH Number of Hong Kong Jockey Club
Members
2EES Full Members 14,997 14,850 14,736 14,594 14,421
2EEE(S) Full Members (S) 194 195 188 181 185
EEREMES Racing and other Members 9,610 9,279 8,993 8,690 8,339
RESE Absent Members 2,793 2,778 2,734 2,724 2,726
ATEE Corporate Members 187 186 189 186 182
27,781 27,288 26,840 26,375 25,853
BREEEAH Number of The Racing Club Members
BHREEE Racing Club Members 1,230 1,139 1,071 962 853

At EE AR Number of Mainland Members
AAEE Individual Members 975 958 908 828 768
AFEE Corporate Members 109 109 107 105 100
30,095 29,494 28,926 28,270 27,574
EEES GROUP EMPLOYEES
M6H30H as at 30 June 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
28 Full-time 7,015 6,605 6,469 6,101 5,912
R Part-time 14,403 14,982 15,793 18,308 18,888

EEBESHRER -
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*Racing statistical data is for full seasons.



